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Indcpendent Auditor's Rcport

To the Members of Casa Grande Axiom Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Casa Grande Axiom Private Limited ('rhe
Company") which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,2023 and the Statement of Prolll and

Loss for the year ended, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flou,

Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then endcd. and notes to the Ind AS
hnancial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us. the

aforesaid Ind AS financial statemenls give the information required by the Companies Act.20l3 ("the

Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules,

2015. as amended, and accounting principles generally accepted in India. of the state of affairs olthe
Company as at March 3 1'r 2023, its Profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the

changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit olthe Ind AS financial statements in accordance rvith the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are

further described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities fbr the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements'

section ofour report. We are independent ofthe Company in accordance with the'Code ofEthics'issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of lndia together u,ith the ethical requirements that are relcvant
to our audit ofthe llnancial statements under the provisions ofthe Act and the Rules thereunder. and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance rvilh these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence ue have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matlers that. in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a rvhole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
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provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information

comprises the information included in the Annual report but does not include the Ind AS financial

statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not

express any form ofassurance conclusion thereon.

ln connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statemcnts, our responsibility is to read the other

inlbrmation and, in doing so, consider whether such other intbrmation is materially inconsistent with the

financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. It based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Other Matters

1'he comparative financial information of the Company tbr the year ended March 3 l. 2022, and the

transition date opening balance sheet as of April I , 2021 , is included in these Ind AS financial statements.

These statements are based on the financial statements prepared in accordance with the Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006. We audited the financial statements for the year ended March 31,

2022. while another auditor conducted the audit for the year ending March 31,2021. and issued an

unmodified opinion on those audited financial statements. These financial statements have been restated

to comply with Ind AS, and we have audited the adjustments to the said comparative financial information
for the difference in Accounting Principles adopted by the Company upon transitioning to Ind AS.

Our opinion is not modified in respect ofthe above matter.

Management's Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements
1'he Company's board of directors is responsible for the matters stated in section I 34( 5) of the Companies

Act. 201 3 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true

and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting standards

prescribed under Section 133 ofthe Act read with rule 3 ofthe Companies (lndian Accounting Standards)

Rules.20l5 as amended.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the

provisions olthe Act for safeguarding the assets ofthe Company and for preventing and detecting frauds

and other inegularities; selection and application olappropriate accounting policiest making judgments

and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate

intemal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and prescntation ofthe financial statements that give

a true and fair view and are free lrom material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessin pariy's

ing conce and

using the going concem basis ofaccounting unless management either intends to liq the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's flnancial rc process

ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable. matters related to
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Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report

that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level ofassurance but is not a guarantee that an

audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material il individually or in aggregate.

they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these lnd AS financial statements.

As part ofan audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professionaljudgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. and obtain

audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk ofnot
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error.

as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations. or the override

of intemal control.

Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevanl to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) ofthe Act. we are

also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate intemal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem basis of accounting

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events

or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going
concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are

inadequate. to modi! our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up

to the date ofour auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company

to cease to continue as a going concem.

r Evaluate the overall presentation. structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements.

including the disclosures, and *'hether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user ol the

financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i)
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the resul

ef-fect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

ts of our work; and (ii e the

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding. among other mattersl
(

the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant defi
control that we identify during our audit

cl ies in inlernal
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We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have complied with relevant

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
l. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Ordei'), issued by the Central

Govemment of India in terms of sub-section ( I I ) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013. we

enclose in the Annexure - B, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said

Order.

2. As

(a)

(b)

(c)

(0

(e)

0

G)

(l')

required by Section 143 (3) ofthe Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes ofour audit.

In our opinion, proper books ofaccount as required by lau'have been kept by the Company so far
as appears from our examination ofthose books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and [.oss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books olaccount;

In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (lndian Accounting Standards)

Rules. 201 5, as amended;

On the basis ofthe written representations received from the directors as on March 3l, 2023 taken

on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31.2023
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section I 64 (2 ) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of the

Company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure A" to this report; Our report expresses

an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the company's intemal
financial controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors' Report under Section 197(16) of the

Act, in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. the limit
prescribed by section 197 for maximum permissible managerial remuneration is not applicable to
a private limited company.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with Rule
I I of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rutes, 2014, in our opinion and to the best ol our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed pending litigations and the impact on its fi
refer note 37 to the Financial Statements.

I positiL

ii. The company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative co
there were any material foreseeable losses.

Ibr which

iii There were no amounts which were required to be transfened to the Investor Education and

t



Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief. other lhan as

disclosed in the notes to the accounts.

i. No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in an1,

other person or entity. including loreign entities 'lntermediaries', with the
understanding. whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner u'hatsoever by or on behalf of the company 'Ultimatc
Beneficiaries' or provide any guarantee. security or the like on behall of the
Ultimate Benefi ciaries: and

ii. No funds have been received by the company' from any person or entity, including
foreign entities 'Funding Parties', with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether. directly or indirectly. lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party 'Ultinate Beneficiaries' or provide any guarantee.
security or the like on behalfolthe Ultimate Beneficiaries.

l1l Based on audit procedures carried out by us, that we have considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances. nothing has come to our notice thal has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any
material misstatement.

\1

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividends during the year and accordingly
reporting on the compliance with section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable
for the year under consideration.

As proviso to Rule 3(l) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules. 2014 (as amended). which
provides for books of account to have the feature ofaudit trail, edit log and related matters
in the accounting software used by the Company, is applicable to the Company only with
effect from financial year beginning April l,2023, the reporting under clause (g) olRule ll
ofthe Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules. 201 4 (as amended), is currently not applicable.

For ABCD & Co,
Chartered Accountants
Firm No: 0l64l5S

4,{
Vinod R.

Partner
Membership No:214t43
Place: Chennai
Date: 0l -08-2023
UDIN: 232 l4 I 43BHAOXQ6498
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Annexure "A" to the Independent Auditor's Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under 'Report on other legal and regulatory requirements' section of our
report to the members of Casa Grande Axiom Private Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of Casa Grande Axiom Private
Limited ("the Company") as of March 31,2023, in conjunction wilh our audit of the Ind AS financial
statements ofthe Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for lnternal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible tbr establishing and maintaining intemal financial controls
based on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute ol Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and elficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company's policies. the safeguarding of its assets. the prevention and detection
offrauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness ofthe accounting records, and the timely preparation
ofreliable financial information. as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143( l0) ofthe Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of intemal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perlorm the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate intemal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the intemal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining
an understanding of intemal financial controls over financial reporting with relerence to these Ind AS
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the

design and operating effectiveness ofinternal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected

t of thedepend on the auditor's judgement, including the as

flnancial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
sessment of the risks of material m

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate provide a basis lirr
our audit opinion on the intemal financial controls over financial reporting with refe

financial statements.

to these Ind AS



Meaning oflnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to these Financial
Statements
A Company's intemal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these lnd AS financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for extemal purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles.

A company's intemal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these lnd AS financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that:

(l) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions ofthe assets ofthe company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation ol
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and thal receipts and

expenditures ofthe company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors ofthe company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition.
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material eflbct on the finanoial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to
these Ind AS Financial Statements
Because ofthe inherent limitations of intemal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these Ind AS financial statements, including the possibitity ofcollusion or improper management override
ofcontrols. material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections
ofany evaluation ofthe intemal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the intemal financial control over financial
reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements may become inadequate because ofchanges
in conditions. or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects. adequate intemal financial controls over
flnancial reporting with relerence to these Ind AS financial statements and such intemal financial controls
over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements were operating effectively as

at March 31,2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the

Company considering the essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of lntemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Inslitute ofChartered Accountants
of lndia

For ABCD & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm No:0164155

.{
R, PoiVinod tner

Membership No: 2l4l
Place: Chennai
Date:01-08-2023
tJDIN: 232 I 4143BHAOXQ6498
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Annexure "8" to the Independent Auditor's Report

(Referred to in paragraph I under 'Report on other legal and regulatory requirements' section of our
report to the members of Casa Grande Axiom Private Limited of even date)

l. Fixed assets:

a) (A) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. the

Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars. including quantitati\e
details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets.

b) The property, plant and equipment of the Company were physically verified by the

management during the year. According to the information and explanations given to us

and as examined by us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by
us, we report that, the Company has no immovable properties of land and buitding hetd
as Property, plant and equipment or Investment Property as at the balance sheet date.

Hence reporting under Clause 3(i)(c) is not applicable.

d) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not revalued
its Property, plant and equipment during the year.

e) Based on the information and explanations furnished to us and as represented by the

management. no proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company
for holding benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act.
1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988

(45 of 1988)) and Rules made thereunder, and therefore the question ofour commenting
on whether the Company has appropriately disclosed the details in its financial statements

does not arise.

2. Inventories:

a) The inventories have been physically verified by the management during the year. In our
opinion, the coverage and procedure ofsuch verification by the management is appropriate
and no discrepancies of 107o or more in the aggregate lor each class ofinventory were noticed
on such verification.

b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees.
in aggregate. from banks or tlnancial institutions on the basis ofsecurity ofcurrent assets at

any point of time during the year.

3

a) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the C
loans in the nature of unsecured loans to companies and Limited Liability
aggregate amount of transaction during the year and balance outstanding at

date with respect to loan to holding company. subsidiary companies and fel
companies is mentioned in the lbllowing table:

pany has made
ership. The

balance sheet
subsidiary



Advances in
nature of loans

Aggregate amount granted/ provided during the year

Subsidiaries

Holding company

Associates

Fellow subsidiaries

Others

985.86

246.05

0.25

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect
of above cases

- Subsidiaries

- Holding company

- Associates/JointVentures
- F-ellow subsidiaries

- Others

612.66

0. l7

(Rs. In Millbn

b) In our opinion and according to inlormation and explanation given to us. the investments
made. guarantees provided, security given and the terms and conditions of the grant of all
loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the
company's interest.

c) The terms of arrangement do not stipulate any repayment schedule and the loans are
repayable on demand with interest.

d) In the absence of stipulated schedule of repayment ofprincipal and payment of interest, we
are unable to comment as to whether there is any amount which is overdue lor more than 90
days.

e) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the companl. has
granted the loans or advances in the nature ol loans either repayable on demand or without
specifying any terms or period of repayment aggregating to Rs.1232.16 (in Miltion) (100%
to the total loans and advances in the nature of loans granted during the year). The aggregate
ofloans granted to related parties as defined in clause (76) ofsection 2 ofthe Companies Act.
2013 is Rs. 1,232.16 (in Million)

f1 Since the term of arrangement do not stipulate any repayment sched e and the loans are
repayable on demand, no question ol overdue amounts will arise i respect of the loans

.of the Act.granted to the parties listed in the register maintained under section l8

4. In our opinion and according to inlormation and explanation given to us, in respect of loans.



investments. guarantees and security. the Company has complied with the provisions of sections
185 and section 186 ofthe Companies Act, 2013.

5. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives issued by the
Reserve Bank oflndia and the provisions ofSections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions ofthe
Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules.20l5 regarding to the deposits accepled
from the public are not applicable.

6. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules

made by the Central Govemment 1br the maintenance olcost records under section 148 ofthe Act,
and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and
maintained. However, we have not carried out a detailed examination of the same.

7. In respect of statutory dues:

a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis ofour examination
ofthe books ofaccount, and records, the Company has generally been regular [except fbr the
dues mentioned below in the clause (b) ofpara (vii)] in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including Income-Tax, Good and Service tax (GST) and any other statutory dues with the
appropriate authorities.

b) Undisputed amounts payable in arears as on 3 I'r March 2023 for a period of more than six
months from the date they payable are given below:

Name of the Statute Nature of the
Dues

Amount
(Rs.in millions)

Period of Default

Income Tax Act, l96l
IT Notice u/s
143(1Xb)

0.08 FY 2019-20

c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax.
Good and Service tax (GST) outstanding on account olany dispute.

8. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
transaclions not recorded in the books ofaccount that lrave been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, l96l (43 of 1961).

9.

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. the Company
has not defaulted in the repayment ofdues to banks or other bonowings or in the payment
of interest thereon to any lender during the year. The Inter Corporate Borrowings are
repayable on demand and terms and conditions tbr payment of interest thereon have nol
been stipulated. According to the information and explanations given to us, such loans and
interest thereon have not been demanded lor repayment during the relevant financial year.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to Company
is not declared as a willful defaulter bv anv bank or financial institutio other l'

c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations giv to us- the term loans
obtained during the year were applied for the purpose fbr which they re availed.

d) In our opinion and according to the informalion and explanation given
on short term basis have not been utilized for longterm purposes.

us- funds raised



e) The Company does not have any subsidiaries/associates/joinrventures and accordingly.
paragraphs 3 (ix) (f) ofthe Order are not applicable.

10.

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not raised any money by way ofan initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, ctause(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

b) In our opinion and according to the inlormation and explanations given to us, the Company
has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible
debentures (fully, partially, or optionally conve(ible) during the year. Accordingly.
paragraph 3 (x) (b) ofthe Order is not applicable.

I l.

a) To the best ofour knowledge and according to the infbrmation and explanations given to
us, no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by any person has been
noticed or reported during the year. Accordingly. clause(xi)(a) ofthe Order is not applicable.

b) No report under subsection (12) ofsection 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in lbrm
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules.2014 with
the central govemment, during the and up to the date olthis report.

c) To the best ofour knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to
us, no whistle-blower complaints have been received by the Company during the year.

12. The Company is not aNidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions ofctause(xii) ofthe Order are not
applicable to the Company.

13. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with
the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the
details have been disclosed in the lnd AS Financial Statements as required by the appticable
accounting standards.

14.

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
does not have an intemal audit system and is not required to have an internal audit system
as per provisions of the Companies Act 2013.

b) The company did not have an intemal audit system for the period under audit.

15. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions ofsection 192 and clause(xv) ofthe Order are not
applicable to the Company.

l6

a) In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under s n 45 lA ol the
xvi) (a) and (b)Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clau

of the Order are not applicable.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, ompan)
is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) and it does not have any other companres ln the
Group as a CIC. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xvi)(c) and (d) of the of the Order are not
applicable.



17. The Company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding

financial year.

18. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause(xviii) of
rhe Order is not applicable.

19. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis ofthe
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates ofrealization of financial assets and payment offinancial
liabilities, other inlormation accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the board of
directors and management plans, there are no material uncertainty exists as on the date ofthe audit
report that Company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and

rvhen they fall due within a period ofone year liom the balance sheet date. We, however, state that
this is not an assurance as to the future viability olthe company. We further state that our reporting
is based on facts up to the date ofaudit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance

that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get

discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

20.

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of other
than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts to be transferred to a fund specified in
Schedule VII to the Act.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. there are no amount
remaining unspent under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act, pursuant to any ongoing
project, to be transferred to special accounl in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6)
ofsection 135 of the said Act.

21. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not
have investments in subsidiaries/ associates orjoint venture companies. Accordingly, clause (xxi) of
the Order is not applicable.

Vinod R.

Partner
Membership No: 2 I 4l 43 

-- '

Place: Chennai
Date:01-08-2023
UDIN: 232 l4l43BHAOXQ6498

[:or ABCD & Co,
Chartered Accountants
Firm No:0164155
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Casa Grande Axiom Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 3l March 2023

(A ll amounts are in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars
As at

Notes 31 March 2023
As st

3l March 2022
As at

01 April 2021

Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Financial assets

Other financial assets

Deferred tax assets (net)

Current assets

Inventories

Financial assets

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Loans

Other financial assets

Other current assets

Total asscts

f,quity and liabilities

Equity
Equity share capital

Other equity

Total equity

Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings

Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Other non-current liabilities

3 5.96 2.95

6.79

3.83

23.16

12.27

6

8

21.67 9.74 39.26

9 354.97

64.37

21.44

93.33

9.45

65.65

74.99

3.27

I 58.10

2.49

15.89

I,543.78 2,318.66

l0
ll
4

5

6

7

l3
t4

l5
8

17

612.80

41.56

39.51

20.24

8.52

28.18

1,134.65 1,703.50 2,639.05

_______lJl{12_

0.l0
404.63

713.24 ______2,6ry;l_t

0. t0
75.91

0.10
(5.s0)

104.73

284.04

58.70

76.01 (s.40)

7.85

740.68

312.74 7.85 740.68

15.7 |



Casa Grande Axiom Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023
(All amottnts are in Millions, unless otherwise slated)

Particulars
As at

Notes 3l March 2023
As at

0l April 2021

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Bonowings
Trade payables

Dues to micro small and medium enterprises

Dues to others

Other fi nancial liabilities
Other current liabilities
Liabililies for current tax (net)

14.82 224.99 52.08

12.57

237 .87

I 1.02

1,138.80

4.1 3

1,629.38

751.59 1,,637.23 2,683.71

_______1Jt{lL ______JJE}!_ 2,678.31

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Casa Grande Axiom Private Limited
CIN : U74999TN20l6PTC I 12595

l5

l8
l8
t6
t7
t2

68.71

65.81

45.22

t79.34
34.95

408.85

20.73

85.1 I
9.79

I,77 t.t3
4.19

1,943.03

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Accompanying notes to the Financial Statements 1-z

As per our report ofeven date

FoTABCD&Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number : 0164155

(

Siva Sa

Director
DN: 09505935

Place : Chennai
Date : 01.08.2023

autam AgarwaalVinod R
Partner

Membership Number : 214143

Place : Chennai
Date : 01.08.2023

Director
DIN: 03064660

0Nl

e

As at
31 March 2022

5.
,ri

a,
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Casa Grande Axiom Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March' 2023

(All amounls are in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Notes

For the year ended
3l March 2023

For the year ended

3l Nlarch 2022

Income

Revenue from contracts with customers

Other income

Totel income

Expenses

Cost of raw materials, components and stores consumed

Construction activity expenses

(lncrease)/ decrease in stock offlats, land slock and work-in-
progress and traded goods

Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortization expense

Other expenses

Total expenses

ProfiU(loss) before tax
(l) Cunent tax
(2) Deferred tax charge(credit)
Income tax expense

Profit/(loss) for the year

Earnings per share

Basic, computed on the basis ofprofit for the year (ln {)

Diluted, compuled on the basis ofprofit for the year (ln {)

As per our report ofeven date

FoTABCD&Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number : 0l64l55

__________],187_]r ___________1J!!!L

t9
20

2t

22

2,478.30

9.01

t,707 .63

t.t7

23

23s.09

439.76

1,206.89

80.84

732.83

771.70

24

25

26

27

52.90

18.58

2.67

90.15

0.02

7 .76

t.26

4.83

2,046.04 1,599.21

28

28

441.27

61.70

50.85

112.55

109.56
8.03

20.12

28.15

328.72

29

32,872

32,872

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Casa Grande Axiom Private Limited
CIN : U74999TN20 I 6PTCI 1 2595

81.41

8,141

8,l4l

Siva Sankar Reddy Nagella
Director

DIN: 09505935

Place : Chennai
Date:01.08.2023

.{///
lyu

\Gautam Agarwasl
birector
DIN:03064660

Vinod R

Partner

Membership Number : 21 41 43

Place : Chennai

Date : 01.08.2023

fr."'\
'",.--\

)1641('



Casa Grande Axiom Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in Millions, unless otheruise stated)

a. Equity share capital:

Numbers Amount
Equity shares of t l0 each issued, subscribed and fullv paid
As at 0l April 2021

Issue of share capital
As at 3l March 2022

Equity shares of { 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
As at 01 AOril2022
Issue of share capital
As at 3l March 2023

b. Other equity

___________10J00_

Total

10,000 0.10

10.000

10,000 0. 10

0.10

As at 01 April 2021

Profit for the period

Total comprehensive income (loss)

As at 31 March 2022

As at0l April2022
Profit for the period

Total comprehensive income (loss)

As at 3l March 2023

As per our report ofeven date

FoTABCD&Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number : 0164153

(s.s0)
81.41

81.4r

75.91

7 5.91

328.72

328.72

404.63

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Casa Grande Axiom Private Limited
CIN : U74999TN20l6PTCI 12595

(s.s0)

81.41

81.41

75.91

75.91

328.72

328.72

{.rl
Vinod R

Partner

Membership Number : 214143

Place : Chennai

Date : 01.08.2023

Siva Sankar Reddy Nagelta
Director
DIN:09505935

t0fll
Place : Chennai

Date : 01.08.2023
G

chc nna-l
600 041

Gautam Agarwaal
Director
DIN:03064660

m

o

Equity shares of t 10 each

______0J0_

Retained earnings

404.63

#*v
ro15415Si ((



Casa Grande Axiom PriYate Limited
Statem€nt ofCash Flows for the year eDded 3l March 2023

(A Il amounts are in Millions, unless otherwise staled)

Particulars
As at

3l March 2023

As at

3l March 2022

Operating activities
Proliu(loss) before tax

Adlustmenls lo rcconcile pruJil before lox lo nel cash flotes:
Depreciation and amortisalion exp€nses

Rental Income

Finance income

Dividend income

Finance costs

Wo*in g cap ilal adj ustme nls :
( I ncrease/decrease in trade receivables

(Increase/decrease in invenlory
(lncreaseyde$ease in other financial assets

(Increase)/decrease in other current assets

I ncrease/(derease) in trade payables

Increase/(decrease) in other financial Iiability
Increase/(decrease) in other cunent liability
Crsh genersted from opereting activities
Income tax (paid)/refunded

Net cash flo\vs from(used in) operating activiti€s

Investing activities
Purchase ofproperty, plant and equipment
Purchase of fi nancial instruments

Repayment received Aom / (Loan given to) related parties

Dividend lncome

Rental Income

Interest receiYed

Net cash flows from(used in) investing activities

Financing activities
Interest paid

Proceeds from long term borrowings

Repayment of long term borrowings
Proceeds/(repayment) from short term bonowings

Net cash flows from/(used in) linancing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ofthe year

Cash end cash equivalents at year end

As per our report ofeven date

FoTABCD&Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number : 0l64t55

R
Partner

For and on behalfofthe Board ofDirectors of
For Casa Grande Axiom Private Limited
CIN : U74999TN20l6PTC I t2595

SiYa Sankar Reddy Nagella
Director
DIN: 09505935

Place : Chennai
Date : 01.08.2023

I 1.99

9.45

21.44

441.27

2.67
(0.06)

(4e.87)

78.37

28.96
r,188.81

(e.36)

(l1.33)
(l15.92)

26.84
(9s9.46)

109.56

1.26

(27 .68)

774.88

t6.31
(t2.29)
144.60

( l,373.01)
620.92 (3s9.63)

(30.40) (7.42)

590.52 (367.0s)

(s.68)

(592.56)

(0.38)

3.27

137.86

0.1I

0.30

0.06

t7 .27

_____l!!92U l,l l .l6

( 12.56)

95.59

(142.44)

2t9.',t6

(71.4e)

905.99

(621.95)

(2t0.t7)
2.38 r60.35

(65.54)

74.99

9.4s

Membership Number : 214143

Place : Chennai

Date : 01.08.2023

cc r-".t3tlio

(6.33)

(0.1r)
13.12

I K,U{N/
Y\

!
.1^\

016415Si (

)-<
Gautam Agarwaal
Director
DIN: 03064660



Casa Grande Axiom Private Limited
Notes to linancial statements for the year ended 3l March 2023

(A ll amounts are in Million Indian rupees, unless otherwise stated)

l.Corporate information
Casa Grande Axiom Private Limited (the 'Company') was incorporated on 20 September, 2016 under the provisions

ofthe Companies Act applicable in India ("Act"). The registered oflice is located at 5th Floor, NPL Devi, New no -

I I l, L.B.Road, Thiruvanmiyur, Chennai 600041.

The Company is engaged primarily in the business of real estate constructions, development and other related

activities in India.

The financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 0l August,

2023.

2.Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements

These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

2,1 Basis of preparation

In accordance with the notification issued by the MCA, the Company has adopted lndian Accounting Standards (lnd
AS) specified under section 133 ofthe Act, read with the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015, as

amended and presentation requirements of Division Il ofSchedule I to the Companies Act, 2013 (lnd AS compliant
Schedule lll).

The standalone financial statements of the Company are prepared and presented in accordance with Ind AS. The

standalone financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments which are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods

and services. Upto 3l March 2022, the Company prepared the financial statements in accordance with the previous

GAAP, which includes the standards notified under the Companies (Accounting standards) Rules, 2006 and other
related provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. These are the Company's first Ind AS financial statements. The
statutory date oftransition to Ind AS is lst April,202l.

2.2 Summary of other significant accounting policies

(a) Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make judgments,

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the
management's best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities. The
effect ofchange in an accounting estimate is recognized prospectively.

(b) Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on curren, non-current classification.
An asset is treated as current when it is:
- Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
- Held primarily for the purpose oftrading
- Expected to be realized within rwelve months afler the reporting period, or
- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted fiom being eictranlea or used to settle a liability for at least twelve

months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
- It is held primarily for the purpose oftrading
- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement oftheliability for at least twelve months after th

All other liabilities are classified as non_current.
e reporting



(A ll amounts are in Million Indian rupees, unless otherwise slated)

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition ofassets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash

equivalents. The operating cycle ofthe Company's real estate operations varies from project to project depending on

the size ofthe project, type of development, project complexities and related approvals. Accordingly, project related

assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current based on the operating cycle of the project. Ail other

assets and liabilities have been classified into current and noncunent based on a period oftwelve months.

Deferred tax assets/ liabilities are classified as non-current assets/ liabilities.

(c) Property, plant and equipment
All property, plant and equipment except freehold land are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation.

The cost comprises purchase price, import duties, non-refundable taxes, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are

met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade

discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Each part ofan item ofproperty, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost ofthe
item is depreciated separately. This applies mainly to components for machinery. When significant parts ofplant and

equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific
useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the
plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs

are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value only if it
increases the future benefits from its previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing
property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts,

are charged to the statement ofprofit and loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition of property, plant and equipment which take substantial period of
time to get ready for its intended use fie also included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready

to be put to use.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is
classified as capital advances under other non-current assets.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is de-recognized upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the income statement when the Property, plant and equipment is de-recognized.

Expenditure directly relating to construction activity is capitalised, lndirect expenditure incuned during con$ruction
period is capitalised to the extent to which the expenditure is indirectly related to construction or is incidental
thereto. Other indirect expenditure (including bonowing costs) incurred during the construction period which is not
related to the construction activity nor is incidental thereto is charged to the statement ofprofit and loss.
Costs ofassets not ready for use at the balance sheet date are disclosed under capital *or[- in- progress.

(d) Depreciation on property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is calculated on written down value method using the following useful lives estimated by the
management, which are equal to those prescribed under Schedule II to the Companies Act,2013, except certain
categories of assets whose useful life is estimated by the management based on planned usage and technical
evaluation thereon:

Useful life
Buildings 60
Temporary Structures 3

Fumiture & Fitti
Plant & Machi - Civil
OIIce Equipment 5

Vehicles 8-10
Computers 3

Servers and network equipment 6

Casa Grande Axiom Private Limited
Notes to linancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Assets

l0
t2-15



Casa Grande Axiom Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(A ll amounls are in Million Indian rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Leasehold improvements are amortised over the remaining period of lease or their eslimated useful life (10 yean),

whichever is shorter.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment and investment

property are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, ifappropriate.

(e) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,

intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, ifany.

lntangible assets comprising of computer software are amortized using written down value method over a period of
three years, which is estimated by the management to be the useful life ofthe asset.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of amortization of intangible assets are reviewed at each financial year

end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net

disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when

asset is derecognized.

(f) Investment property

The Property that is held for long term rental yield or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the

Company is classified as an lnvestment Property. lnvestment properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, ifany.

The cost includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the

recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of the investment property are required to be replaced at

intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. All other repair and

maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as incuned.

Expenditure directly relating to construction activity is capitalised. Indirect expenditure incuned during construction
period is capitalised to the extent to which the expenditure is indirectly related to construction or is incidental
thereto. Other indirect expenditure (including borrowing costs) incurred during the construction period which is not
related to the construction activity nor is incidental thereto is charged to the statement ofprofit and loss.

Investment properties are de-recognized when the entity transfers control ofthe same to the buyer. Further the entity
also derecognises investment properties when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic
benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset is recognized in profit or loss in the period ofde-recognition.

Reclassification fiom /to investment property Transfers to (or from) investment property are made only when there is
a change in use. Transfers between investment property, owner-occupied property and inventories do not change the
carrying amount of the property transferred and they do not change the cost of that property for measurement or
disclosure purposes

(g) Impairment
A. Financial assets

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a Company of financial assets is
impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The Company
recognizes lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and / or all trade receivables that do not constitute a
financing transaction. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the l2-
month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on rhe
financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.



Casa Grande Axiom Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(A ll amounts are in Million Indian rupees, unless otherwise staled)

B. Non-financial assels

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any

indication exists, or when amual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's

recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) net

selling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does

not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or Company's of assets. Where the

carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written

down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and

the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if
available. Ifno such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. After impairment, depreciation is provided on

the revised carrying amount ofthe asset over its remaining useful life

(h) Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract

conveys the right to control the use ofan identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Where the Company is lessee

A contract is, or contains, a lease ifthe contract involves -
i. The use ofan identified asset,

ii. The right to obtain substantially all the economic benefits from use ofthe identified asset, and
iii. The right to direct the use ofthe identified asset

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and

leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets

representing the right to use the underlying assets.

A. Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying

asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses, and adjusted for any reme.tsurement of lease liabilities. The cost of righrof-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the

commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-otuse assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis

over the shorter ofthe lease term and the estimated useful lives ofthe assets.

If ownership ofthe leased asset transfers to the Company at the end ofthe lease term or the cost reflects the exercise

ofa purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life ofthe asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.

B. Lease liabilities
At the commencement date ofthe lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of
lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed pa).rnents (including in substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a

purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, ifthe lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount oflease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion ofinterest and reduced for the
lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured ifthere is a modification, a

change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting liom a change in
an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.



Casa Grande Axiom Private Limited
Notes to linancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(A ll amounls are in Million Indian rupees, unless otherwise stated)

C. Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases i.e., those leases that have a

lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. It also applies

the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on

short-term leases and leases oflow-value assets are recognised as expense on a straightJine basis over the lease term.

Where the Company is the lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the

asset are classified as operating leases. Assets subject to operating leases are included under Investment property.

Lease income from operating lease is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term ofthe relevant lease including
lease income on fair value of refundable security deposits, unless the lease agreement explicitly states that increase is

on account of inflation. Costs, including depreciation, are recognized a:i an expense in the statement of profit and

loss. Initial direct costs incuned in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.

(i) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs consist ofinterest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the bonowing offunds.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production ofan asset that necessarily takes a

substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized/inventorised as part of the cost of
the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are charged to statement ofprofit and loss.

The Company treats as part ofgeneral borrowings any borrowing originally made to develop a qualifring asset when
substantially all ofthe activities necessary to prepare that asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

fi) Inventories
Direct expenditure relating to real estate activity is inventorised. Other expenditure (including borrowing costs)
during construction period is inventorised to the extent the expenditure is directly attributable cost of bringing the
asset to its working condition for its intended use. Other expenditure (including borrowing costs) incurred during the

construction period which is not directly attributable for bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended

use is charged to the statement of profit and loss. Direct and other expenditure is determined based on specific
identification to the real estate activity.

i. Work-in-progress: Represents cost incurred in respect of unsold area (including land) of the real estate

development projects or cost incurred on projects where the revenue is yet to be recognized. Work-in-progress is
valued at lower ofcost and net realizable value.
ii. Finished goods - Stock ofFlats: Valued at lower ofcost and net realizable value.
iii. Raw materials, components and stores: Valued at lower ofcost and net realizable value. Cost is determined based
on FIFO basis.

iv. Land stock: Valued at lower ofcost and net realizable value.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(k) Land
Advances paid by the Company to the seller/ intermediary toward outright purchase of land is recognized as land
advance under other assets during the course of obtaining clear and marketable title, ftee from all encumbrances and
transfer of legal title to the company, whereupon it is transfened to land stock under inventories/ capital work in
progress.

Land'/ development rights received underjoint development arrangements ('JDA') is measured at the fair value oftheestimated construction service rendered to the land owner and the same is accounted on launch of the project. Theamount ofnon-refundable deposit paid by the company under JDA is recognized as land advance under other assetsand on the launch of the project, the non-refundable amount is transferred as land cost to work-in-progress/ capital

ffi'ir,l fi::::LFurther, 
the amount of retundable deposit paid by the company una". joa i, recognized as



Casa Grande Axiom Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2023

(A Il amounts are in Million Indian rupees, unless olherwise stated)

(l) Revenue recognition
A, Revenue recognition
a. (i) Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transfened to the

customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services. Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for
discounts and other credits, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer. The Company presents revenue

from contracts with customers net ofindirect taxes in its statement ofprofit and loss.

The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to

which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated. In determining the transaction price, the Company

considers the effects of variable consideration, the existence of significant financing components, noncash

consideration, and consideration payable to the customer, ifany.

Revenue from real estate development of residential unit is recognised at the point in time, when the control ofthe
asset is transferred to the customer, which generally coincides with transfer ofphysical possession ofthe residential

unit to the customer i.e.., handover/ deemed handover of the residential units. Deemed handover of the residential

units is considered upon intimation to the customers about receipt of occupancy certificate and receipt of substantial

sale consideration.

Revenue consists ofsale of undivided share of land and constructed area to the customer, which have been identified
by the Company as a single performance obligation, as they are highly intenelated/ interdependent.

The performance obligation in relation to real estate development is satisfied upon completion of project work and

transfer of control ofthe asset to the customer.

For contracls involving sale of real estate unit, the Company receives the consideration in accordance with the terms
of the contract in proportion of the percentage of completion of such real estate project and represents payments

made by customers to secure performance obligation of the Company under the contract enforceable by customers.
Such consideration is received and utilised for specific real estate projects in accordance with the requirements ofthe
Real Estate (Regulation and Development) Act, 2016. Consequently, the Company has concluded that such contracts
with customers do not involve any financing element since the same arises for reasons explained above, which is
other than for provision offinance to/from the customer.

Further, for projects executed tkough joint development anangements not being jointly controlled operations,
wherein the land owner/possessor provides land and the Company undertakes to develop properties on such land and
in lieu of land owner providing land, the Company has agreed to transfer certain percentage of constructed area or
certain percentage of the revenue proceeds, the revenue from the development and transfer of constructed area./

revenue sharing arrangement in exchange of such development rights/ land is being accounted on gross basis on
launch of the project. Revenue is recognised over time using input method, on the basis of the inputs to the
satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to the total expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance
obligation.

The revenue is measured at the fair value of the land received, adjusted by the amount of any cash or cash
equivalents transferred. When the fair value of the land received cannot be measured reliably, the revenue is
measured at the fair value of the estimated construction service rendered to the land owner, adjusted by the amount
of any cash or cash equivalents transferred. The fair value so estimated is considered as the cost of land in the
computation ofpercentage ofcompletion for the purpose ofrevenue recognition as discussed above.

Recognition of revenue from sale of land and development rights:
Revenue from sale of land and development rights is recognised upon transfer ofall significant risk and rewards ofownership of such real estate/property, as per the tarrr of th" contracts entered into *ith bryao, which generallycoincides with the firming of the sales contracts/agreements. Revenue from sale of land and development rights isonly recognised when transfer of legal title to the buyer is not a condition precedent fo, t.unr[, or rignificant risksand rewards ofownership to the buyer.
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Recognition of revenue from interior works and sale of concrete products and scrap:

Revenue is recognised when control of the goods are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the

consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods. Revenue excludes indirect

taxes and is after deduction ofany trade discounts.

Recognition of revenue from maintenance and other services:

Revenue in respect of maintenance services and other services is recognised on an accrual basis, in accordance with
the terms of the respective contract as and when the Company satisfies performance obligations by delivering the

services as per contractual agreed terms.

Income from Property DeYelopment:
The Company has determined that the existing terms of the contract with customers does not meet the criteria to

recognise revenue over a period of time. Revenue is recognized at point in time with respect to contracts for sale of
residential and commercial units as and when the control is passed on to the customers which is linked to the

application and receipt of occupancy certificate.

Sale of Materials, Land and Development Rights:
Revenue is recognized at point in time with respect to contracts for sale of Materials, Land and Development Rights

as and when the control is passed on to the customers.

a, (ii) Contract balances

Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the
Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the eamed consideration that is conditional.

Trade receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the
passage oftime is required before payment ofthe consideration is due).

Contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the
Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs
under the contract.

a. (iii) Cost to obtain a contract
The Company recognises as an asset the incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a customer if the Company
expects to recover those costs. The Company incurs costs such as sales commission when it enters into a new
contract, which are directly related to winning the contract. The asset recognised is amortised on a systematic basis
that is consistent with the transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which the asset relates.

b. Lease income
The company's policy for recognition ofrevenue from operating leases is described in note 2.2(h).

c. Share in proliU loss of Limited Liability Partnerships (..LLps") and partnership Iirm
The Company's share in profits/losses from LLPs and partnership firm, where the Company is a partner, is
recognised as incomefloss in the statement of profit and loss as and when the right to receive its profit/ loss share is
established by the Company in accordance with the terms of contract between the Company and the partnership
entity.

B. Other Income
a. Interest income

Interest income, including income arising from other financial instruments measured at amortised cost, is recognised
using the effective interest rate method.

b. Dividend income
Revenue is recognised when the company's right to receive dividend is established, which is generally whenshareholders approve the dividend,
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(m) Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency :

Items included in the financial statements ofthe Company are measured using the currency ofthe primary economic

environment in which the Company operates ('the functional currency'). The financial statements are presented in

lndian rupee (lNR), which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions and balances

A. Initial recognition - Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the

foreign cunency amount the exchange rate between the reporting curency and the foreign currency at the date ofthe
transaction.

B. Conversion - Foreign currency monetary items are retranslated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting

date. Non-monetary items, which are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign cunency, are

reported using the exchange rate at the date ofthe transaction. Non-monetary items, which are measured at fair value

or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rate at the date when

such value was determined.

C. Exchange dilferences - The Company accounts for exchange differences arising on translation/ settlement of
foreign currency monetary items as income or as expense in the period in which they arise.

(n) Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefits in the form of state govemed Employee Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance are

defined contribution schemes (collectively the 'Schemes'). The Company has no obligation, other than the

contribution payable to the Schemes. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the Schemes as expenditure,
when an employee renders the related service. The contribution paid in excess of amount due is recognized as an

asset and the contribution due in excess ofamount paid is recognized as a liability.

Gratuity, which is a defined benefit plan, is accrued based on an independent actuarial valuation, which is done based

on project unit credit method as at the balance sheet date. The Company recognizes the net obligation of a defined
benefit plan in its balance sheet as an asset or liability. Gains and losses through re-measurements ofthe net defined
benefit liability/ (asset) are recognized in other comprehensive income. In accordance with Ind AS, re-measurement
gains and losses on defined benefit plans recognized in OCI are not to be subsequently reclassified to statement of
profit and loss. As required under Ind AS compliant Schedule III, the Company recognizes re-measurement gains and
losses on defined benefit plans (net of tax) to retained eamings.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to bo caniod forward beyond twelye months, as long-term
employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method, made at the end of each financial year. Actuarial
gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss. The Company presents the accumulated leave
liability as a cunent liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement
for twelve months after the reporting date.

(o) Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises culrent tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the
year.

Current and deferred tax are recognized in the statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and defened tax are also
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
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A, Current income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the

taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date where the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying

transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax retums

with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and considers whether it is
probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The company shall reflect the effect of
uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment by using either most likely method or expected value method, depending

on which method predicts better resolution ofthe treatment.

B. Deferred income tax
Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach, deferred tax is recognized on temporary
differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial repo(ing purposes, except when the defened income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss at the time ofthe transaction.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward ofunused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of defened income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part ofthe deferred income
tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expecled to apply in the period when
the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity) in conelation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or in equity.

Minimum Altemate Tax (MAT) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing
evidence that the Company will pay normal tax during the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at each Balance
Sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is written down to rhe extent there is no longer a
convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal tax during the specified period. ln the same way,
Altemate Minimum Tax (AMT) is recognised for LLp.
(p) Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognized when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result ofpast event,
it is probable that an outflow ofresources embodying economic tenefits will be required to settle the obligation and areliable estimate can be made ofthe amount ofthe obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material,provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the Iiability.when discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed onlyby the occurrence or non-occulrence of one omora un"".tuin future events not whollf *l,rri, ,r,a control of thecompany or a presenl obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable ttrat an outnow orresources will berequired to settle the obligation. A contingent liaLility also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability thatcannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The company-do.. not r".ogrir"u contingent liability
i::j'J[.r:'r:# 

the financial starements, unless the porriUtrif of an outflow of ,"ro;;r;;;odying economic
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If the Company has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract is recognised and measured

as a provision. However, before a separate provision for an onerous contract is established, the Company recognises

any impairment loss that has occurred on assets dedicated to that contract.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the

occurrence or non-occurrence ofone or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control ofthe entity.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed except when realisation of income is virtually certain, related

asset is disclosed.

(q) Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or

equity instrument of another entity.
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value, trade receivable/trade payable that do not contain a

significant financing component are measured at transaction value and investment in subsidiaries are measured at

costing accordance with lnd AS 27 - separate financial statement.

Subsequenl measurement : Non-der ivative fnancial instuments

A. Financial assets carried at amortised cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is

to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms ofthe financial asset give rise on

specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments ofprincipal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

B. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held
within a business whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets

and the contractual terms ofthe financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

C. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amo(ized cost or at fair
value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition.

D. Debt instruments al amortized cost
A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortized cost ifboth the following conditions are met:
i. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows,
ii. Contractual terms ofthe asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments ofprincipal and

interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part ofthe EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income
in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the profit or loss. This category generally
applies to trade and other receivables.

E. Investment in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

Investment in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are carried al cost. Impairment recognized, ifany, is reduced
from the carrying value.

F. De-recognition of linancial asset

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows fiom the financial asset
expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition under Ind AS 109.
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G. Financial liabilities
In itial recognition and measuremenl

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,

loans and bonowings, or as payables, as appropriate. The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other

payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts. The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification, which is described below.

Subsequent measurement: Non-derivative financial instruments

H. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified

as held for trading ifthey are incurred for the purpose ofrepurchasing in the near term.

L Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest ('EIR') method. Gains

and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR
amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the ElR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the

J. De-recognition of financial liability

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition ofthe original liability and the recognition ofa new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognized in the statement ofprofit or loss.

IC Fair value measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
)ln the absence ofa principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market pa(icipant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company uses following hierarchy and assumptions that
are based on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date.

L. Fair value hierarchy:
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input thar is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

Level I - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level2 - valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant lo the fair value measurement isdirectly or indirectly observable

H;l;';,]'*tion 
techniques for which the lowest level input rhat is significant ro the fair value measurement is
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For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines

whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest

level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end ofeach repo(ing period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained

above.

(r) Cash dividend to equity holders ofthe Company
The Company recognizes a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders of the Company when the

distribution is authorized and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. Final dividends on

shares are recorded as a liability on the date ofapproval by the shareholders and interim dividends are recorded as a

liability on the date ofdeclaration by the Company's Board ofDirectors.

(s) Earnings Per Share

Basic eamings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity

shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity

shares are treated as a fraction ofan equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative

to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue that have changed the number of equity shares

outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of
all dilutive potential equity shares.

(t) Cash and cash equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash that are subject to an insignificant risk ofchange in value and having original maturities ofthree months or less

from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of balances with banks which
are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

(u) Restatement
The Company restates its financial statements and presents a opening balance sheet as at the beginning of the
preceding period if it applies an accounting policy retrospectively, makes a retrospective restatement of items in its
financial statements or reclassifies items in its financial statements that has a material effect on fte information in the

balence sheet at the beelnning 0f the preceding period.

The Company corrects material prior period enors retrospectively in the first set of financial statements approved for
issue after their discovery by (a) restating the comparative amounts for the prior periods presented in which the enor
occurred; or (b) if the error occurred before the earliest prior period presented, restating the opening balances of
assets, liabilities and equity for the earliest prior period presented.

(v) Segmetrt reporting
In accordance with Ind AS 108 - Operating Segment, the operating segments used to present segment information
are identified on the basis of information reviewed by the Company's management io allocate resources to the
segments and assess their performance. An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in
business activities from which it eams revenues and incurs expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to
transactions with any ofthe company's other components. Results ofthe operating segments are reviewed regularly
by the Managing Director who has.been identified as the chiefoperating decision riut.i tcooul, to make decisions
about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance.
Presently, the company is engaged in only one segment viz iReal estate and allied activilies, and as such there is noseparate reportable segment as per Ind AS 108 'operating Segments'. The Company has operations only withinIndia.

Accordingly' the segment revenue, segment results, total carrying amount of segment assets and segment liability,total cost incurred to acquire segment assets and total amou;t J.h".g" ro. a"|r."iution Jrrirg ,n. period, is asreflected in the financial statements as ofand for the year ended 3l March 2023-
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2.3 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that

affect the reported balances of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, and the

disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these judgments, assumptions and estimales could result in

outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount ofassets or liabilities affected in future periods.

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management makes judgement, estimates and

assumptions which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements.

The key judgements, estimates and assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation

uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts

of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its judgements,

assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or
circumstances arising that are beyond the control ofthe Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions

when they occur.

A) Revenue from cotrtracts with customers

The Company applied the following judgements that significantly affect the determination of the amount and timing
ofrevenue from contracts with customers:

a. (i) Identilication of performance obligation

Revenue consists of sale of undivided share ofland and constructed area to the customer, which have been identified
by the Company as a single performance obligation, as they are highly intenelated/ interdependent. In assessing

whether performance obligations relating to sale of undivided share of land and constructed area are highly
interrelated/ interdependent, the Company considers facton such as:

- whether the customer could benefit from the undivided share of land or the constructed area on its own or together
with other resources readily available to the customer.

- whether the entity will be able to fulfil its promise under the contract, to transfer the undivided share of land
without transfer of constructed area or transfer the constructed area without transfer ofundivided share ofland.

a, (ii) Timing ofsatisfaction of performance obligation
Revenue fiom sale of real estate units is recognised when (or as) control of such units is transferred to the customer.
The entity assesses timing of transfer of control ofsuch units to the customers as transfened over time ifone ofthe
following criteria are met:

- The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the entity's performance as the entity
performs.

- The entity's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced.

- The entity's performance does not create an asset with an altemative use to the entity and the entity has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

Ifcontrol is not transferred over time as above, the entity considers the same as transferred at a point in time.

For contracts where control is transferred at a point in time the Company considers the following indicators of the
transfer ofcontrol ofthe asset to the customer:
- When the entity obtains a present right to payment for the asset.
- When the entity transfers legal title ofthe asset to the customer.
- When the entity transfers physical possession ofthe asset to the customer.
- when the entity transfers significant risks and rewards ofownership ofthe asset to the customer.- When the customer has accepted the asset.

The aforesaid indicaton oftransfer ofcontrol are also considered for determination ofthe timing ofderecognition ofinvestment property.
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b) Accounting for revenue and land cost for projects executed through joint development arrangements

For projects executed through joint development arrangements, the Company has evaluated that land owners are not

engaged in the same line of business as the Company and hence has concluded that such arrangements are contracts

with customers. The revenue from the development and transfer ofconstructed arealrevenue sharinB arrangement and

the corresponding land/ development rights received under JDA is measured at the fair value of the estimated

construction service rendered to the land owner and the same is accounted on launch of the project. The fair value is

estimated with reference to the terms of the JDA (whether revenue share or area share) and the related cost that is

allocated to discharge the obligation of the Company under the JDA. Fair value of the construction is considered to

be the representative fair value ofthe revenue transaction and land so obtained. Such assessment is carried out at the

launch of the real estate project and is not reassessed at each reporting period. The management is of the view that

the fair value method and estimates are reflective ofthe current market condition.

c) Signilicant financing component
For contracts involving sale of real estate unit, the Company receives the consideration in accordance with the terms

of the contract in proportion of the percentage of completion of such real estate project and represents payments

made by customers to secure performance obligation of the Company under the contract enforceable by customers.

Such consideration is received and utilised for specific real estate projects in accordance with the requirements ofthe
Real Estate (Regulation and Development) Act,20l6. Consequently, the Company has concluded that such contracts

with customers do not involve any financing element since the same arises for reasons explained above, which is
other than for provision offinance to/fiom the customer.

B. Classilication of property
The Company determines whether a property is classified as investment property or inventory as below.
Investment property comprises land and buildings (principally office and residential properties) that are not occupied
substantially for use by, or in the operations of, the Company, nor for sale in the ordinary course of business, but are

held primarily to eam rental income and capital appreciation. These building/gs are substantially rented to tenants

and not intended to be sold in the ordinary coune ofbusiness.

Inventory comprises property that is held for sale in the ordinary course of business. Principally, this is residential
and commercial property that the Company develops and intends to sell before or during the course of construction
or upon completion of construction.

Estimation ofnet realizable value for inventory and land advance

Inventory is stated at the lower ofcost and net realizable value (NRV).

NRV for completed inventory property is assessed by reference to market conditions and prices existing at the
reporting date and is determined by the Company, based on comparable transactions identified by the Company for
properties in the same geographical market serving the same real estate segnent.

NRV in respect of inventory property under construction is assessed with reference to market prices at the reporting
date for similar completed property, less estimated costs to complete construction and an estimate of the time value
ofmoney to the date of completion.

With respect to land inventory and land advance given, the net recoverable value is based on the present value of
future cash flows, which depends on the estimate of, among other things, the likelihood that a project will be
completed, the expected date ofcompletion, the discount rate used and the estimation ofsale prices and construction
costs.
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C. Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value ofan asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which

is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal

calculation is based on available data fiom binding sales transactions, conducted at arm's length, for similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a

DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring

activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset's

performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF

model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. These

estimates are most relevant to disclosure offair value ofinvestment property recorded by the Company.

D. Delined benelit plans - Gratuity
The cost ofthe defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present value ofthe
gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various

assumptiolls that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination ofthe discount

rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long{erm
nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed

at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans

operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of govemment bonds. The mortality rate is based on
publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic
changes. Future salary increases are based on expected future inflation rates and expected salary increase thereon.

F. Useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment
The useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment is determined based on evaluation made by the
management ofthe expected usage ofthe asset, the physical wear and tear and technical or commercial obsolescence
of the asset. Due to the judgements involved in such estimates the useful life and residual value are sensitive to the
actual usage in future period.

E. Measurement of financial instruments at amortized cost
Financial instrument are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest ('EIR') method. The
computation of amortized cost is sensitive to the inputs to EIR including effective rate of interest, contractual cash

flows and the expected life of the financial instrument. Changes in assumptions about these inputs could affect the
reported value of financial instruments.



Casa Grande Axiom Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2023

(A ll amounts are in Million Indian rupees, unless otherwise stated)

G. Provision for litigations and contingencies
Provision for litigations and contingencies is determined based on evaluation made by the management ofthe present

obligation arising from past events the settlement of which is expected to result in outflow of resources embodying

economic benefits, which involves judgements around estimates the ultimate outcome of such past events and

measurement of the obligation amount. Due to judgements involved in such estimation the provision is sensitive to

the actual outcome in future periods.

2.4 Recent accoutrting pronouncem€nts

New and amended standards
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 3l 2023, MCA amended the

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, as below:

Ind AS l, Presentation of Financial Statements - This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material
accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. The effective date for adoption of this
amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 0l Apnl2023.

Ind AS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - This amendment has introduced a
definition of 'accounting estimates' and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities distinguish changes in
accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is

annual periods beginning on or after 0l April 2023.

Ind AS 12, lncome Taxes - This amendment has nanowed the scope ofthe initial recognition exemption so that it
does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. The effective date for
adoption ofthis amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 0l April2023.

The amendments are extensive and the Company will evaluate the same to give effect to them as required by law.

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements ofthe Company.
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2023

(A ll anounts are in Millions, unless othensise slated)

3. Property, plant and equipment

Buildings Computers
Furniture

and
Fixtures

Office
Equipment

Total

Cost

As at 01 April 2021

Additions during the year

Disposals during the year

As at 3l March 2022

Additions during the year

Disposals during the year

As ar 3l March 2023

Depreciation
As at 0l April 2021

Depreciation charge for the

year

Disposals dudng the year

As at 3l March 2022

Depreciation charge for the
year

Disposals during the year

As st 3l March 2023

Net block

As at 0l April 2021

As at 3l March 2022
As at 3l March 2023

0.21 0.14

0.34

3.03 0.45

0.04

3.83

0.3 8

0.48 3.03 0.49 4.21

2.25 2.8 I 5.68

0.21 I.t0 5.28 3.30 9.89

0.17

0.17

0.77 0.21 1.26

0.1I o.77 t.26

0.46 1.03 r.l8 2.67

0.11 0.63 t.80 1.39 3.93

0.21

0.10

0.10

0.14

0.3t
0.47

0.4s

0.28
l.9l

3.83
2.95

5.96

Note - On transition to Ind AS (i.e. I April 2021), the Company has elected to continue with the carrying
value oFall property, planl and equipment measured as per the previous CAAP and use that carrying value
as the deemed cost of property, plant and equipment.

0.2t

0.62

0.1l

0.21

3.03

2.26

3.48



Cssa Grrnde Axiom Privrte Limitcd
Notcs to Finrncirl Strt.mcots for thc y.rr cndcd 3l Merch 2023

(All amounls are ih Millions, unless olhert/ise slated)

4. Investmctrts
i. lnvestmcnls !t frir vslue through Profit rnd Loss

Quoted Mutu.l Futrds As .t
3l M.rch 2023

As .t
3l Mrrch 2022

As rt
0l April 2021

3.2',1

3.21

3.27
Total Invcstmcrts
Current

Non-Current

As at
3l Mrrch 2023

As rt
3l March 2022

As at
0l April202l

Loms to rclrtcd prrty
Loan to related parties

Totrl lorDs crrricd at amortiscd cost

Current

Non-Current

6. Othcr finrncirl essets

(Measured at amonised cost)

20.24 158.10

20.21 t58.10
612.80 20.24 158.10

As at
3l M.rch 2023

As rt
3l March 2022

As at
0l April202l

Security deposit

Bank deposits with more than 12 months

Interest accrued but not due

Interest accrued and due

Rental advance

Totrl firsncirl itrslrumctrts rt rmortised cost

Current

Non-Current

7. Other issets

0.10

15.6t

41.07

0.05

0.44

6.'19

8.52

23.16

2.49

51.27 15.31 25.65

41.56

15.71

8.52

6.79

2.49

23.16

As et
3l March 202J

As .t
3l March 2022

As at
0l April202l

Advance to suppliers

Advances for land contracts

Balance with Govemment authorities

Totrl othcr rssats

Current

Non Current

39.51 28.t8 15.89

3q.5I 28t8 I5J9

4.t2

35.39

5.6E

2.50

20.00

5.18

10.71

Muturl FuDd

Aditya Bida Sun Life Floating Rate Fund - Gromh-Direct Plan

(Mar 2021 - Units - 12,093.03, NAV - 270.68/unit)

Totrl Inv.stm.nts rt frir vsluc through Profit rnd Loss

Aggregrtc book vrluc of quotcd inycstm.rts
Aggrcgrtc mrrkat valuc ofquoted investments

5. Loans
(Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated, measured at amortised cost)

3.27

r.27
3.27

612.80

6t2.80



Casr Grrnde Axiom Priv.tc Limited
Notes to Finencirl Strt.mclts for th. y.er cnded 3t Mrrch 2023

a ll amounts are in Millions, unless otheNise $tated)

8. Deferrcd tar essets (net)/ Deferred tax liebilities (net)
As .t

3l Merch 2023
As st

3l Mrrch 2022
As rt

0l ADril202l
Deferred t.r lirbilitics
Inventory

Uneamed revenue

Bonowings
Gross dcfcrred tex liebilities

D.ferrcd tsx rsscts

Property, plant and equipment

Uneamed revenue

Non deductible expenses for tax purposes

Gross defcrrcd tu rsscts

Nct dcferrcd tsr rssct/(liabilities)

9. Inventories

0.86

259.25

0.04

38.95

19.90

0.98

268.00 555.24

0.15

59.83

0.02

268.00

l.l3 567.66

(58.70) (7.85 12.21

As rt
3l March 2023

As rt
3l Mrrch 2022

As rl
0l April202l

Work-in-progress

Raw materials, components and stores

Total inve[to]ies st thc lowcr ofcost snd nct realisrblc valuc

10. Tradc receivrbles
(Unsecured, considered good)

310.55

44.42

|,514.94
28.84

2,289.t4
29.52

1,s43.78 2.318.66

As at
3l March 2023

As at
3l l\tarch 2022

As at
0l April 2021

Trade receivables

Trede receivables egeing schedule

93.33 65.65

61.37 93.33 65.65

As st
Jl March 2023

As at
3l lUarch 2022

As rt
0l April202l

Urdisputcd Trsdc Rccciveblcs - considcred good

Outstanding for following periods from duc date of payment

Current but not due

Less than 6 months

6months-lyear
I -2 yean

2-3 yean

More than 3 years

Totrl

I l. Crsh end cash equivalents

56.94

2.03

5.03

0.37

61.3 8

19.7 5

9.65

2.55

48.55

12.10

5.00

As at As at As at
JI arch 2023 3l March2022 0l A 202t

Boloaces with bank:
- On curront accounts

- Deposis with original maturity ofless than three months
ChequeV drafts on hand

Cash on hand

Totel cesh end crsh cquivalcnt

21.33 9.14

0.31

73.16

21.41 9.45 74.99

cash at banks cams intcrest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between oneday and thrce months, dep€nding on the immediate cash requirements ofthe company, and eam interest at thc respective short-term deposit rates.

l.

555.39

0.77

566.88

0.01

260.15

J54.97

64.37

64.37 93.31 65.65

0.1I r.83



Cesa Grande Axiom Priv.tc Limited
Noaes to Finarcirl Strtements for the ycrr endod 3l Morch 2023

(A ll amounts ore in Millio4s, unless olherwise stated)

12. Current t.x rss.t (n.t)

3l March 2023

As at
3l Mlrch 2022

As rt
0l April202l

Advance tax

Provision for tax

Total currcnt trr (nct)

13. Equity shrre crpital

39.97
(74.e2)

t8.29
(22.42)

10.08

(t4.27)
(34.95) (4.13) (1.1e)

Equity shrrcs of t l0 each

Nlmher Amount
r) Authoriscd sh.re crpitrl
As rt 0l April202l
lncrease./(decrease) during the year

As ,t 3I Mrrch 2022

Increase(decrease) during the year

As at 3l Merch 2023

10,000 0. t0

10,000 0.10

10,000

Rights, prefcrcDccs rDd rcstrictions .ttrchcd to thc cquity shrres
The Company has one class ofcquity sharcs viz., regular equity shares.

Regular Equity shares : These equity shares are having a par value of { l0 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for One vote per share held. The

dividend proposed by the board is subject to the approval of the sharcholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim
dividend. ln the cvent of liquidation, the equity shareholden are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all
preferential amount, in proportion to their shareholding.

b) Issued sherc capital

At 0l April 2021

Increase/(decrease) during the year

At 3l Mrrch 2022

Increase./(decrcase) during the year

At 3l Mrrch 2023

c) Peid-up shrrc cepitrl
At 0l April 2021

Increasd(decrease) during the year

At 3l Merch 2022

Increase/(decrease) during the year

At 3l Merch 2023

10,000 0. t0

10.000 0.10

10,000 0.10

I 0.10

10,000 0.10

0.10

t0,000 0.r0



Case Grcnde Ariom Privrte Limited
Not.s to Financill Statem.nts for thc ycsr ended 3l March 2023

(A arnounts are in Millioru, unless olhengise staled)

Detsils ofsharchold.rs holding morc thrn 57o shares and shares hcld by promotors in thc Compeny
As .t

3l March 2023
No. ofShares 7" of Holdins

As .t
3l Merch 2022

No- of Sh*rrc o/" nfHoldinr
Equity sh.rcs
Casagrand Premier Builder Private Limited (Formerly known as

Casagrand Builder Private Limited)
10,000 1000/" 10,000 t00%

As rt
0l April 2021

No. of Shrres o/o ofHoldino
Equity shrrcs
Casagrand Premier Builder Private Limited (Formerly known as

Casagrand Builder Private Limited)

Details ofchsnges in the promotors holdings

10,000 1000/.

As at
3l March 2023

As st
3l Mrrch 2022

As at
0l April 2021

Equity shrrcs
Casagrand Premier Builder Private Limited (Formerly known as

Casagrand Builder Private Limitcd)

14. Other equity

lvo 0% 0v.

As al
3l Mrrch 2023

As et
3l March 2022

As at
0l April 2021

a) Reteincd eernings

Opening
Add: Additions

Closing

15. Borrowirgs

15.91

328.72

(5.s0)

81.41

(5.58)

0.08

404.6J 75.91 (s.s0)

As at
3l Mrrch 2023

As rt
3l Merch 2022

As rt
0l Aoril 2021

Totrl non curreDt borrowings

B) Current borrowings

i) Losr rcp.yable on demlnd
Bank overdrafls
From related parties

ii) Currant maturity oflong-term losns
From Financial institutions

Total current Borrowiogs

284.04

14.82 224.99 5.23

46.85

14.82 224.99 s2.08

A) Non-current borrowings

a) From other partics

l) Sccured
From Financial institutions

284.04



Crsa Grrndc Ariom Privrtc Limitcd
Notes to Finlnairl Strtaments for thc yerr Gndad 3l Msrch 2023

(All arnou s are itMi ions, unless othefirise slaleo

S.no leod.r

Disbursc
mant

Amt itr
Mn

Perliculars
2023 2021

Amt in
Mn

Amt in
Mn

Ami in
Mn

I

Tata Capital
Housint
Financc

Limited
(TCHFL)

350.00

BoIrowing Entity: Cass Crande Axiom Priv.le Limited
Natu.e of Security :

l. Property:
(i) Extension of charge by way ofRegistered Simple Mortgage over land and consruction thercof
(present and tuture) of resid€ntial villa project 'Tranquil' being conslructed on all that piece and

parel of lard bearing Sy No.7tl4,79(lA lB, lC, lD, 2,Ae28,3, 4, 5A, 58, 6,7,t), t0/ (1, 2, 3A,
38, 3C), E7(1, 4,5, 6At, 6A2.6B, 8A, 88, 94 9B, loAeloB), 88(4, 64, 6C) of Jalladampet
village, Sholingrnallur Taluk, Chennai Districl. Tarnil Nadu (lolally admeasuring -5.30 8cres less-

0.867 acres gifled for Link Road & OSR)
(ii) Cross collateralisation ov€r security of residenlial project 'Casagrand Flagship' being
construcled on all thal piec. and parcel of land b€ariDg multiple Survey Nos. Iocated al Jalladianpet
Villag€, Sholinganallur Taluk, Kanchc€puram Dislrict and t caled at Pallikaranai village,
Tambaram Taluk, Chengalpet District, Tamil Nadu (totelly admcasuring "lT.58 acrcs less arca Io

b€ giricd for Link Road & OSR)
2. Stock, Receivables and movable prop€rtyl

(i) Exlension of charge by the way of h)'pothecalion on all rec€ivables of 'Tranquil' project

including all sold, unsold, insurance aec€ipts as well as development and other chagcs and any
cesh flow
(ii) Cross c.llateralisation over all rec€ivabl€s of'Casagand Flagship' project including all sold,
unsold, insuIaoce receipts as well as developmenl 8nd olher cha€es and any cash flow
l. Co Bonower: Casagrand Prcmier Builder Privale Limited & Casagrand Horizons Private
Limited.

284.03

R€payment T€rms and Rate of intercst:

L TeIm of loan: I 350.00 million - 24 months (including moratoium of 12 mon$s) fiom the d.te
of first disbursem€[t (Mar 2023)
2- RepaFent of loan principal: 12 monthly instalments starting from l3lh month from lst
disburscm€nt.
3- Principal Moratoriumr 24 Months ftom the date of lst disbursement (interest on oulstanding
arnount payable during this period)

4. Interest: Payable monthly at the floating rate of 12.607o p.a. (PLR of 19.50 % minus 6.90% per

annum) at lh€ time ofdisbun€ment.
5. lnterest Resel -lnterest rate changes bas€d on the ChanSes in Prime lrnding Rate. Th€ change in
PLR will b€ at the sole discretion ofTCHFL.

2022



Crsr Gra[da Ariom Privrtc Linitad
NotB to Fillanairl Strtem.nts for tha yalr endcd 3l Mrrch 2023

(A ll arnounts are in Millions, unless olhetpir. slated)

S.no lendcr

Disbursc
mcIlt

Aot ill
Mn

Perticulars
2023 2022 2021

Amt in
Mn

Amt in
Mn

Amt in
Mn

2

Aditya Bi a

Housing

Financ€

Limited

200 00

Bonowing Entity: Casa Grande Axiom Privatc Limited
Nature ofsccurity:
L P.op€rty: Exclusive charge by thc w.y MODTD on the project (Sereno) and project land

admeasuring 1t,450 Sq.mts in the rcsidenlial project'Casa Grand Sereno" situatcd at No. 153/1,

t9n, t1l/t. t7U2A, t72t1Bt, t72 B2, l12nct, l72 C2, t12nA" t12t2B, t12t2B, t72t2c,
I 80/1, oltiyambakkam Villagc, sholin$ia.Uur Taluk, Kancheepuram District.
2. Stock & Receivables: An Exclusive char8e by way of h)'poth€cation on the sch€duled
receivables of both sold & unsold of Project 'Casa Crand Sereno' under the documenls enterEd

into with thc cuslomers by the borowEr.
An exclusive charge by way of hypothccation on lh€ escro\d account for the project and on all
monics credited/d€positcd ther.in & all investments in resp€cl th€rcol
3. Corporatc Guuantce: C&sagnnd Premier Builder Private Limited
4. Pe.sonal Guarantee: Mr Arun MN & Mr Anerudan (Erstr{hile Promoter)

46.85

Repaymenl Terms & Rate of Inlerest i

L Term to6n fscility ofl 200.00 Million
2. Tenor:24 Month tenor from the date ofdisbuBement
3. Rcpayment 12 Monlh principal momtorium and 12 Month repayment
4. Rate of Intenst: Floating Interest rate @ 15.00 per annum linked with ARR minus applicabl€
,Jl.aryin -l.25Yo

5. Interest Reset: lender shall have rights to reset interesl rate on expiry oftwelv€ month from the

date of first disbunernent.
Loan for€closed on 22nd June 202 I



Casr Gr.nd. Axiom Privrtc Limitcd
Notes to Fioancill Strt.m€nts for the yerr cnded f,l Merch 2023

(A ll omounls are in Millions, unless otherN'lise staled)

16. Other financirl lirbilities
(Carried at amortised cost)

As at
3l Merch 2023 J Ilua rch 2022

As st
0l April 2021

As at

Interest accrued but not due

Interest accrued and due

Accrued expenses

17. Other liabilities

l8.l I

21.|

10.75

0.2'l

0.38

9.14

0.27

45.22 I 1.02

45.22 I 1.02 9.'t9

As at
3l March 2023

As rt
3l Mrrch 2022

As at
0l April 2021

Advance from customers

Statutory dues and related liabilities

Uneamed Revenue

Corpus Fund

Others

20.95

5.40

132.99

19.95

0.05

I1.89
1.32

l,l 17.0E

8.50

0.01

35.18

2.02

2,47 4.23

0.35

0.03

179,34 1,88.80 2.51l.8l
179.34 I,r38.80 |,171.13

740.68

18. Trade payrbles
As at

3l Mrrch 2023
As rt

3l Mrrch 2022
As at

0l April202l
Trade payables

- total outstanding dues ofmicro small and medium enterprises

- total outstanding du€s 10 othcrs

Totrl trrdc pryrblcs

Trade payables

Trade payables to related parties

Totil trrd. pryrblcs

Trade peyebles ageing schedule

Totrl outstanding dues ofmicro, small end mcdium enterpriscs
Less than I year

I -2 years

2-3 yean
More than 3 years

Total

Totrl outstrnding dues to others
Less than I year

I -2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Tohl

68.71

65.81

12.57

237.87

20.73

85.1I

134.52 250.,1,t t05.8.1

134.04

0.48

90.14

160.30

105.84

134.52 250.44 105.8,t

As et

3l March 2023

As ,t
3l March 2022

As at

0l April202l
65.85

2.63

0.1 I

0.12

t0.98
1.47

0.12

68.71 12.57 20.73

44.98

13.52

5.36

1.95

230.96

4.73

0.85

1.29

82.4s

1.82

0.36

0.48
65.8t 237.83 85.1t

The identification of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Suppliers as defined under "The Micro Small and Medium Enterprises DevelopmentAct 2006" is based on information available with the management. As certified by the management, on the amomts overdue (if any) to Micro,Small and Medium Enterprises on account of principal anount, interest has been accrued and wil be paid to suppliers on demand of claim. TheCompany has not received any claim for interest from any supplier as at the balance shect date.

Tot.l other financial lirbilities
Current

Non curent

9.79

Totrl othcr lirbilitics
Current

Non current

20.61

0.12



Casa Grandc Axiom Privrte Limitcd
Notes to Fin{ncirl Statements for thc year cnded 3l Merch 2023
(All amounts arc in Millioru, unless otherwbe slaled)

19. Revenue from coltracts wilh cuslomers
3l Merch 202.1 3l March 2022

Revenue fiom real estate development

Total rcvanua from contrack with customcrs
India
Outside India

Totel revenuc from contrrcts with customers

Timing of rcvetruc rccog[ition
Goods tmnsfened at a point in time
Serviccs transferred over time

Totel rcvcnuc from cotrtrscts with customers

Other opereting revenues

Modification income

Marketing commission

Cancelled customer income

Scrap sales

Total other operating revenues

Total revenuc from oper&tions

Contrrct brlances

2462.20

2462.20

I 702.1o

t102.to

2,462.20 I,702.t 0

2462.20 1702.10

2,462.20 1,702.10

t4.03
l.l0
0.39

0.58

4.46

0.1 I

0.96

16.10 5.53

2,478.30 I,707.63

As at
3l lllarch 2023

As at
3l March 2022

Contrrct assets

Trade receivables

Unbilled revenue

Cotrtrsct li.bilities
IJneamed Revenue

Customer advances

64.3'1 93.33

132.99

20.95

I,l17.08
I l.E9

20. Other income

3l March 2023 3l March 2022
Dividend income on mutual funds
Interest income

Rent income

Miscellaneous income

0.1 I

r.068.36

0.06

0.59

21. Cost ofraw m.terials, components rnd stores consumed

lr 2023 3l March 2022a, Rrw mrtcrirl and compotrents coDs|lmed
Inventory at the beginning ofthe year
Add: Purchases

Less: inventory at the end ofthe year

28.84

250.6'1

(44.42)

29.52

80. t6
(28.E4

235.09 80.84

22. Construclion sctivity expeoses

Land cost
Approval, legal and liaison
Construction cost
lnterest and financial charges

2.82

35.03

383.63

18.28

417.81

15.79

299.t4

0.09
439.76 732.83

1702.10

2.462.20

9.01 l.l7

2021 ]l



Crsa Grendc Axiom Privrt. Limitcd
Notes to Fin.nci.l Stat.ments for thc ycrr erded 31 Merch 2023

(A ll amounls are in Milliont, unless olherwise stated)

3l March 2023 -31 Merch 2022

a) Opening balance

Work-in-progress

Adjustment to opening WIP

Totrl opcnirg brlrncc

b) Closing balance

Work-in-pro$ess

Total closing brlrrcc

c) Toleldifference in inventory (r) - {b)

24. Employe€ benefits expcllsc

I,514.94

2.50

l,5t1.u

310.55

3t0.55

2,289.r4
(2.50)

2,286.64

1.5t1.91

I,511.9,1

1,206.89 17t.10

3l Merch 202.1 3l March 2022

Salaries, wages and bonus

Staff welfare exp€nses

25. Finance costs

48.68

4.22 0.02

52.90 0.02

3l lltarch 2023 3l Msrch 2022

Interest on borrowings

Other bonowings costs

Less: Borrowing Cost transferred to Construction activity expenses

26. Dcprecirtion and rmortization cxper!se

18.28

18.58

0.09
'7.76

36.86

(18.28)

7.85

(0.0e)

18.58 7.76

I M.rch 2023 3l M2rch 2022
Depreciation ofproperty, planl and equipment

27, Other expcrses

2.6'7 t.26
2.67 1.26

3l March 2023 l March 2022
Power and fuel

Rates and taxes

Insurance

Repairs and mainenance

Buildings

Vehicles

Others

CSR expenditure (rcfer details below)
Advertising and sales promotion
Travelling and conveyance

Communiaation costs

Commission and brokerage fees
Printing and stationery
Legal and professional fces
Payment lo audilor (Refer details below)
Software expenses

Rent

Bank charges

Discount

Books and periodicals

Miscellaneous expenses

0.58

0.2'l

0.05

t.48

0.17

4.30

0.76

56.1I
13.48

1.62

l.r6
0.15

4.58

0.20

2.15

2.29

0.24

0.52

0.01

0.01

0.07

0.05

4.05

0.04

0.02

90.t5 4.8J

23. (Increrse)/ decrease in stock of flats, hod stock and work-in-progress ind traded goods

o.ro
0.20

0.01

0.01

0._22



Crsr Greodc Axiom Privetc Limitcd
Notes to Financirl strtcmcnts for the year ended 3l Mrrch 2023
(A ll amounts are in MillioLt, unless otherwise stated)

Prvment to Auditors
I Merch 20211 -11 N{erch 2022

As suditor;
Audit fee

In other crprcity:
Other services (certifi cation fees)

Detrils of CSR expenditure:

0.18 0.20

0.02

0.20 0.20

As per Section 135 ofthe Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability tkeshold, needs to spend at least 2% of its average net prolit
for the immediately preceding three financial yca$ on corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities. The areas for CSR activities are eradication

of hunger and malnutrition, promoting education, art and culture, healthcare, destitute care and rehabilitation, envi.onment sustainability, disaster

relief and rural development project.

3l Mrrch 2023 3l Mrrch 2022
(i) Amount required to be spent by the clmpany during the year

(ii) Amount ofexpenditure incuned / hansfened to unspent CSR account
(iii) Shortfall at the end ofthe year

(iv) Total ofprevious years shortfall
(v) Reason for shortfall
(vi) Nature ofCSR activities

(vii) Details of related party ransactions, e,9., contribution to a trust
controlled by the company in relation to CSR expenditure as per

relevant Accounting Standard

(viii) Where a provision is made with respect ro a liability incuned by
entering into a clntractual obligation, the movements in thc provision
during the year should be shown separately

28. Tax expense

0.76

0.76

3l March 2023 3l Merch 2022

6t.70

0.98

(0.2s)

0.02

(229.0s)

279.t5

8.03

(0.15)

I12.55 28.15

Current incomc trr:
Cunent incomc tax charge

Adjustments in respect of current income ta:< ofprevious year

D.fcrrcd trx:
Relating to origination and reversal oftemporary differences
i) Property, plant and equipment

ii) Non deductible expenses for tax purposes

iii) Inventory

iv) Uneamed revenue

v) Liability under joint development arrangement
vi) Bonowings
vii) Right-of.usc assets

viii) Lease liability
ix) CWIP
x) Security deposit

Incomc tu crpetrsc reportcd in thc strtemert ofprofit or loss

(0.10)

(0.03)

(281.24)

307.64



Casa Grendc Axiom Priv.te Limited
Notcs to Finsnci.l Stetcments for the yerr ctrded 3l Merch 2023

ll amouhts are in ilillio\s, unles$ olheruise stated)(A

Reconcilietion of tax expcnse snd the accounting profit multiplied by lndia's domestic tax rate for 3l March 2023 and 3l Mrtch 2022

3l March 202J 3l Nlarch 2022

Accounting profit before income tax

Tax on accounting profit at statutory income lax rule 25 .l1yo
Tax effecl on account oftransition to IND AS
Deferred tax effect

44t.27
l r 1.06

(49.36)

50.85

109.56

27.5',1

( 19.54)

20.12

Adjustments recognised in the current year in relation to the current

tax ofprior yea$

Income trx expense reported itr the statemcnt of profit or loss I12.55 28.15

*The Company clected to exercise the option permitted under section I I5BAA ofthe Income Ta\ Act, 196l as iDtroduced by the Taxation Laws
(Amendment) Ordinance, 2019. Accordingly, the Compaoy has recognised Provision for Income Tax for the year and re-measured its Defened tax

a-sset (or/and defbned tax liability) basis the rate prescribed in the said section.

29, Earnings per share
-31 Msrch 202-1 3l Merch 2022

Profit attributable to equity holders for basic eamings ( A )

Equity Shrres
Number ofshares at the beginning ofthe year

Add i shares issued during the year

Totrl Number ofshrrcs outsarDding rt th. cnd ofthc ycrr ( B )

weighted average number ofshares outstanding during the year - Basic

Add : Weighted average number ofshares that have dilutive effect on EPS

wcighted rver.gc Dumbcr ofshrrcs outstuditrg durirg tbc y.rr - Dilutcd ( C )

Earning per shrrc of per value INR.l0 - B.sic (D=A/B)(lnO
Earning per share of par value INR.I0 - Diluted ( E=A/C)(In{)

30. Gratuity and othcr Dost-emDlovmeDt benefit Dlans

'I he amounts recognized in the B.lrnce Sheet are as lbllows:

Psrticulsrs

328.',|2

10,000

8 t.41

10,000

t0,000

10.000

10,000

10,00{_)

10,000

-\2,872
32,812

8,141

8,t41

As rt
3l March 202]

As at
3l Merch 2022

Present value ofthe obligation as at the end ofthe year

Fair value ofplan assets as at the end ofthe year

Net lirbility recognizcd in thc Balencc Sheet

Non-current

Current

Jl. Leases

Buildings l otal

As rt 0l April202l
Additions during the year

Depreciation during the year

As at 3l March 2022

Additions during the year

Depreciation during the year

As at 3l ltferch 2023

t0,000

A. Compaoy as r lessce
Sct out bclow rrc thc crrrying rmount of right-of-use rsscts recogniscd rnd movements during thc



Casa Grandc Axiom Privatc Limitcd
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2023

(A ll amounts are in Millions, unless otheruise staled)

32. Fair valuc mcrsurcmcnts
The details offair value measurement ofCompany's financial assetyliabilities are as below:

Finrncial 8ssctsnisbilitics mc8surcd at FairValuc through profiUloss:

Level
As at

3l March 2023

As at
0l April202l

Investments in quoted investments -mutual funds 3.27

The fair value ofthe financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a cunent transaction

between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. There have been no transfers between levels during the period.

The management assessed that the carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, short term investments, loans, trade payables,

bonowings and other financial asses and liabilities approximate their fair values largely due to the short-term maturities.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:
.The quoted investments (mutual funds) are valued using the quoted market prices in active markets.

Set out below, is a comparison by class ofthe carrying amounts and fair value ofthe Company's financial instruments:

As rt As rt
3l Msrch 2023 3l Marcb 2022

Carryitrg Viluc Fair value Carrying Value Fsir value
Fitrsncial Asscts

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Loans

Other financial assets

Finatrcial Lisbilitics
Bonowings (Non-Current)

Bonowings (Cunent)

Trade payables

Other financial liabilities

612.80

57.27

612.80

57.27

20.24

15.31

20.24

15.3 r

284.04

14.82

t34.52
45.22

224.99

250.44

1t.02

21.44 21.44

284.04

t4.82
134.52

45.22

9.45

224.99

250.44

I1.02

9.45

As rt
0l April202l

Csrrying Valuo Fair value
Financial Asscts

lnvestments (non-curent)

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Loans

Other financial assets

Firancial Li8bilitics
Borrowings (Non-Current)

Bonowings (Current)

Trade payables

Other financial liabilities

158.10

25.65

158.10

25.65

'14.99

52.08

105.84

9.79

'74.99

52.08

105.84

9.79

33. Capitsl Matragemcnt

The Company's objectiYes of capital management is to maximize the shareholder value. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Company may adjust the retum to shareholders, issue/ buyback shares or sell assets to reduce debt. The Company manages its capital structure
and makes adjustments in light ofchanges in economic conditions and the requirements ofthe financial covenants.
The Company monitors capilal using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total equity plus ner debt as below.

.Equity includes equity share capital and all other equity components attributable to the equity holders

'Net debt includes borrowings (non-current and culrent), trade payables and other financial liabilities, less cash and cash equivalents
(including bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents and margin money deposits with banks)

As rt
3l March 2022



Casa Crande Axiom Private Limited

Not€s to Fitratrcial Statements for the ycar coded 3l March 2023

(A ll amounls ote in Millions, unless other\lise slaled)

As at
3l March 2023

As at
3l March 2022

As at
0l April202l

Bonowings (non-current and current)

Trade payables

Other financial liabilities (current and non-current)
Less: Cash and cash equivalens(including balances at bank other

than cash and cash equivalents and margin money deposits with

Net Dcbt (A)
Equity share capital

other equity

298.86

134.52

45.22

52.08

105.84

9.19

(21.44) (e.45) (7 4.ee)
457.t6

0.10

404.63

417.OO

0.10
'15.91

92,72

0.10
(5.50)

Equity (B) 404.13 76.01 (5.40)

Equity plus net debt (C= A+B) 861.89 553.01 87 -32

Gearing ratio (D = A./C) Sl.OnZ 86.260/o 106.1 8%

In order to achieve the objective of maximize shareholden value, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that

it meets financial covcnants attached to the int€rest-bearing bonowings that define capital structure requirements. Any significant breach in

meeting the financial covenants would allow the bank to call bonowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants ofabove-

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the current and previous years.

34, Financiel risk mstrsgcmcot objcctivcs rnd policics

The Company's principal financial Iiabilities, comprise borrowings, t'ade and other payables. The main purpose ofthese financial liabilities is to

finance the Company's operations.

The Company's principal financial assets include loans, trade, olher receivables and cash and cash equivalents and bank balances other than cash

and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's management ovelsees the management ofthese risks and

ensures that thc Company's financial risk activities are govemed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified,
measured and managed in accordance with the Company's policies and risk objecrives.

i. Market risk

Ma*et risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows ofa financial instrument will fluctuate because ofchang€s in market prices. Ma*et
risk comprises two types ofrisk: interest rate risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity/ real-estate risk,

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate lo the position as at March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022 and April l, 2021. The sensitivity
analysis has been prepared on the basis that thc amount of net debt and the ratio of fixed to floating intercst rates of the debt. The analysis

excludes the impact ofmovements in market variables on the carrying values ofgraluity and other post retirement obligationVprovisions.
The below assumption has been made in calculating the sensitivity analysis:

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect ofthe assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial
assets and financial liabilities held at March 3l, 2023, March 3l ,2022 and Apd,l I,2021.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows ofan exposure will fluctuate because of changes in Interest rate. The entity's
exposure to the risk ofchanges in Interest lates relates pdmarily to the entity's operating activities (when receivables or payables are subjcct to
different interest rates) and the entity's net receivables or payables

The Company is affected by the pric€ volatility of certain commoditiey real estate. Its operating activities require the ongoing development of
real estate. The Company's management has developed and enacted a risk management strates/ regarding commodity/ real estate price risk and
its mitigation. The Company is subject to the price risk variables, which are expected to vary in line with the prevailing market conditions.

Iotcrest rate sctrsitivity

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant. The
impact on the Company's profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value ofnon-cunent and current borrowings and other curent and non
current fi nancial liabilities.

Change in rate
Effcct of prolit

before tax

3l March 2022

+lyo
-lo/o

+lyo
-lo/o

+lYo

-to/o

0l April 2021

224.99

250.44

I 1.02

fl Nlarch 2023 0.37

(0.37)

0.08

(0.08)

0.16

(0.16)



Casa Grande Axiom Privste Limited
Notes to Finrncial Statements for thc year crded 3l March 2021

(All amounls are in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

3l Morch 2023 +sYo

-5%

3l Mrrch 2022 +5Yo 0.01

-50/o (0.01)

0l April202l +s%o 0.00

-so/o (0.00)

ii Crcdit risk
Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments if a counterparty default on its obligations. The Company's

exposure to credit dsk arises majorly from trade receivableV unbilled revenue and other linancial assets.

Other financial assets like security deposits, loans aDd bank deposits are mostly with employees, govemment bodies and banks and hence, the

Company does not expect any credit risk with respect to th€se financial assets.

With respect to trade receivableV unbilled revenue, the Company has constituted teams to review the receivables on periodic basis and to take
necessary mitigations, wherever required. The Company creates allowance for all unsecured receivables based on lifetime expected credit loss
(.ECL),

iii. Liquidity risk

The Company's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generated from operations. The Company
believes thar the cash and cash equivalents is suflicient to meet its current requirements. Accordingly no liquidity risk is perceived.

The break-up ofcash and cash equivalents, deposits and investments is as below.

3l lttarch 2023 3l trtarch 2022 0l April202l
Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Investments

21.44 9.45 '14.99

3.27

Maturity period 3l l\farch 2023 3l Nlarch 2022 0l April202l
Financial liabilitics - current
Bonowings (current)

Lease liabilities
Trade payables

Other financial liabilities
t34.52

45.22

250.44

.02

105.84

9.79

t4.82

284.04

224.99 52.08

Financisl lisbilities - t!o[ currctrt
Bonowings
Lease liabilities
Other fi nancial liabilities

Within a year

Within a vear

Within a vear

Within a year

The Company invests surplus funds in liquid mutual funds. The Company is exposed to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future

values of the investment. The Company manages the equity price risk through investing surplus funds on liquid mutual funds for shon term

basis.

The table below summarises the impact of increase/decrease ofthe Net Asset value (NAV) on the profit for the year. The analysis is based on

the assumption that the NAV price would incrcase 5olo and decrease by 5% with all variable constant,

Itrcrcasc/
Change in retc (dccr.ssc) ir

prolit

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities at the reporting date. The a.rnounts are based on
contactual undiscounted payments

Betweenl-3yea6
Between l - l0 yeal

Between I -3years



Casa Gratrde Axiom Privete Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2023

(All amounts are in Millions, unles s ol he rw ise st aled)

35. First tim€ sdoptiotr
As stated in Note I & 2, the Company has prepared its first financials statements in accordance with Ind AS. For the purposes of transition
fiom previous GAAP to Ind AS, the Company has followed the guidance prescribed in lnd AS l0l - First Time adoption of Indian

Accounting Standards ("Ind AS l0l'), with effect fiom I April, 2021 ("transition date"). For the year ended 3l March 2022, the Company

had prepared its financials stalements in accordance with Company's (Accounts) Rules 2014, notified under section 133 ofthe Act and other
relevant provisions ofthe Acr ("previous GAAP" or "lndian GAAP").

The accounting policies set out in Note 2 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2023 including
the comparative information the year ended 3l March 2022,and I April 2021.

ln preparing its Ind AS balance sheet as at I April 2021 and in presenting the comparative information for the years ended 31 March 2022

and 3l March 2023, the Company has adjusted amounts r€ported previously in financial statements prepared in accordance wilh previous

GAAP. This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in restaling its financial statements prepared in accordance with
previous GAAP, and how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Company's financial position and financial
performance. There were no significant reconciling items between cash flows prepared under Ind AS other than those arising due to
reclassification ofthe previous year figures to conform to the current year's presentation.

Optional exemptions availed and msndstory exceptions
In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, the Company has applied the below mentioned optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions.

A. Optiotral exemptions availed
(i) . Property, plant atrd equipment and itrtsngible assets

Ind AS l0l permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment as recognis€d
in the financial statements as at the date oftransition to Ind AS, measured as per the Previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the
date oftransition after making necessary adjustments for de-commissioning liabilities. This exemption can also be used for intangible assets

covered by Ind AS 3E Intangible Assets and inyestment property covered by Ind AS 40 Investment Properties. Accordingly, the Company has
elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investment property at their Previous GAAP carrying value.

(ii). Investmetrts ir subsidiaries, joint ve[tures and associates
Ind AS 27 requires investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures to be recorded at cost or in accordance with lnd AS lO9 in its
separate financial statements. However, Ind AS l0l provides an option to measurc that investment at one ofthe following amounts in case
the Company decides to measure such inyestment al cost:
i. Cost as per Ind AS 27 or
ii. Deemed cost, which is:

a. Fair value at the entity's date oftransition to Ind AS
b. Previous GAAP carrying amount at that date

The Company has elected to measure its inyestments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures using deemed cost at the previous GAAP
carrying amount at the date oftransition to Ind AS.

(iii). Share based poyments

Ind AS l0l provides an option to not apply Ind AS 102 to liabilities arising liom share-based payment transactions that were settled before
the date oftransition to Ind As. The Company has elected to avail this exemption and apply the requiremenrs of Ind AS 102 to all such grants
under the ESOP plan, which are not settled as at the date oftransition to Ind AS.

(iv), Revenue from conlracts with customers
Ind AS l0l provides following practical €xpedients when applying Ind AS I l5 retrospectively:
(a) for completed contracts, an entity need not restate contracts that begin and end within the same annual reporting period;
(b) for completed contracts that have variable consideration, an entity may use the transaction price at thsdate the contract was completed
rather than estimating variable consideration amounts in the comparative reporting periods; and
(c) for all reporting p€riods presented b€fore the beginning ofthe first Ind AS reporting period, an entity need not disclose the amount ofthe
transactioD price allocated to the remaining performance obligations and an explanation ofwhen the ent;ty expects to recognise that amount

(v), Busitress combinations
Ind AS l0l provides the option to apply Ind AS I 03 prospeclively ftom the transition date or from a specific date prior to the transition date.The Company has elected to apply Ind AS 103 prospectively to business combinations occurrinj after ils transition date. Use of thisexemption means that business combinations occurring prior to the transition date haye not been rest;d and the IGAAP carrying amounts ofassets and liabilities, that are required to be recognised under lnd AS, is their deemed cost at the date ofthe acquisition. After rhe date oftheacquisition, measurement is in accordance with respective Ind AS.



Casa Grande Axiom Private Limited
Notes to Fiuancial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2023

(A ll amounts are in Millions, unless otherv/ise stated)

B. Mandatory exemptions 8vailed

Ind AS l0t also allows first-time adopters can claim mandatory exceptions to be applied for retrosp€ctive application ofcertain requirements

under Ind AS for transition from the previous GAAP:

(i) Estimates
As per Ind AS l0l, an entity's estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date oftransition to Ind AS shall be consistenl with estimates made

for the same date in accordance with previous GAAP (after adjustments to refled any difference in accounting policies), unless there is
objective evidence that thos€ estimates were in error. However, the estimates should be adjusted to reflect any differences in accounting
policies.
As per lnd AS l0l, where application of Ind AS requires an entity lo make c€rtain estimates that were not required under previous GAA?,
those estimates should be made to reflect conditions that existed at the date oftransition (for preparing opening Ind AS balance sheet) or at

the cnd ofthe comparative period (for presenting comparative information as per Ind AS).
lnd AS estimated as at 0l April 2021 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in conformity with previous CAAP. The
Company made estimates for following items in accordance with Ind AS at the date oftransition as these were not required under previous

GAAP:

-Fair yaluation offinancial instruments carried at fair value through profit and loss or fair value through other comprehensive income,
Jmpairment of'financial assets based on expected credit loss model,
-Determination ofthe discounted value for financial instruments carried at amortised cost, and
Upon the assessment ofthe estimate made under previous GAAP, the Company has conclud€d that there was no necessity to reyise such

estimates under Ind AS, other than those which are required due to applicalion oflnd AS.

(ii) Derecognitioo of linancial assets and liabilities:
As per lnd AS l0l an entity should apply thc recognition requirements in Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, prospectively for rransaction
occurring after the date of transition to Ind AS However an entity may apply the derecognition requirements retrospectively from a date
chosen by it if the information needed to apply Ind AS 109 to financial assets and financial liabilities derecognized as a result of past
transaction were obtained at the time ofinitially accounting for those transaclions.

The Company has chosen to avail the exception to apply the derecognition provision oflnd AS l0l prospectively fiom the date oftransition.

(iii) Classification and measurement of financial sssets:

lnd AS 101 requires an entity to classiry and measure its financial assets into amortised cost, fair value through profit or loss or fair value
through other comprehensive income based on the business model assessment and solely payment ofprincipal and interest ("SPPI") criterion
based on facts and circumstances that exist at the date oftransition. Further, the standard permits m€asurement of financial assets accounted
at amortised cost based on the facts and circumstances existing at the date oftransition ifretrospectiye application is impracticable.
Accordingly, the Company has determined the classification of financial assets based on facts and circumslances that exist on the date of
transition. Measurement ofthe financial assets accounted at amortised cost has been done retrospectively.

C. Reconciliation ofequity ts previously reported under Previous GAAP to Ind AS

The following reconciliations provides the effect oftransition to Ind AS ftom previous GAAP in accordance with Ind AS l0l :

l. Total equity as at I April202l and 3l March 2022
2. Total comprehensive income reconciliation for the year ended 3l March 2022



Casa Crande Ariom Privatc Limited
Notes to Filtarcial Ststements for the y€ar ended 3l March 2023

(All amounls are in Millions, unless olherw ise slated)

D. Notes to Ind AS transitior

(i). Revcluc from contracls with customers

Revenue from real estate development is recognised at the point in time, when the control of the asset is transferred to the customer. Thc
performance obligation in relation to real estate development is satisfied upon completion of project work and transfer of control ofthe asset to the

customer. Under previous CAAP Revenue is recognised as per the Revised Guidance Note issued by lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia on

" Accounting for Real estate transactions (Revised 2012)". As p€r which revenue is recognised under the percentage ofcompletion method.

(ii). Borrowitrgs

Under Ind AS 109 requires transaction costs incuned towards origination of bonowings to be deducted from the carrying amount ofborrowings on

initial recognition. These costs are recognized in the statement of profil and loss over the tenure of the borrowing as part of lhe finance cost by

applying the effective interest method. Under previous GAAP, these transaction costs were charged to statement of profit and loss on straight-line
basis over the period ofloan,

(iii). Property, phtrt 8nd cquipmcnl
Under previous GAAP, (i) Land and (ii) Buildings are included as part of Property, plant and equipment. In aacordance with Ind AS these are

classified as investment properties. The management has determined that the investment properties consist oftwo classes ofassets (i) Land and (ii)
Buildings based on the nature, characteristics and risks ofeach property.

(iv). Lesscs

Under the previous GAAP, lessee classified a lease as an operating or a finance lease based on whether or not the lease transfened substantially all
risk and rewards incidental to the ownership ofan asset. Op€rating lease were expensed in the statement of profit and loss. Pursuant to application
of Ind AS - I16, for op€rating leas€s other than those for which the Company has opted for short-term or low value exemption, the Company has

recorded a right-of-use asstts. Right-of-use asset is amortised over the lease term or useful life ofthe leased assets whichever is lower and lease

liabilities is subsequently measured at amortised cost and interest expense is recognized.

The Company has measured the right-of-use asset at the date of transition at its carrying amount as if Ind AS - I 16 had been applied since the

commencement date of the lease and the lease liability is measured at present value of the remaining lease payments since the date of
commencement.

The movement is relating to reclassification ofinvestments in quoted mutual funds from Cash and Cash equivalents to Short term Investments and
the quoted investments (mutual funds) are valued using the quoted market pricas in active markets. Under previous GAAP these were valued at
lower ofcost and fair value,

(yi), Loans aDd other finatrcial assets

The movement in other financial assets is arising mainly on account of reclassification of security deposit from non-cunent to ROU assets as per
INDAS I16. Under previous GAAP these were accounled at cost.

(yii). Deferred lares

Indian GAAP requires deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which focuses on differences between taxable profits and
accounting profits for the period. Ind-AS 12 requires entities to account for deferred taxes using thc balance sheet approach, which focuses on
temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the balance sheet and its tax base, The application of Ind-AS 12

approach has resulted in recognition of deferred tax on new temporary differences which was not required under Indian GAAP. ln addition, the
various transitional adjustments lead to temporary differences.

(viii), Remeasurcment of post employee benefits expense

Under Ind AS, remeasurements i.e. actuarial gains and losses and the retum on plan asset, excluding amounts included in the net interest expense
on the net defined benefit liability are recognized in other comprehensive income instead of profit or loss. Under the previous GAAP, these
remeasurements were forming part ofthe profit or loss for the year.

(v). Irvestments



Casa Grande Ariom Privrte Limited
Notes to Finrncial Strtemcots for the yerr ended 3l March 2023

(All amounts are in Millions, un les s ot herw is e s t ated)

36. R€lated party transsctions

i. Nemes of r€leted rties rrtd nature of relationshi
Name of the Relsted Prrty Nature of Relrtionship

Casagrand Premier Builder Privatc Limired (Formerly known as Casagrand Buildcr Private Limited)

Casa Grande Civil Enginecring Private Limited

Casa Crande Gracc Private Limited

casa Interior studio Private Limited (Till 3ll01/2022)

Casa Grande Propcarc Privatc Limited (Till 3ll0ll2022)
Casagrand Staylogr Privatc Limited

Casa Grande Homes Privatc Limited

Casagand Horizons Privatc Limited

Cazf Mag Privatc Limited

Casagrand Magick Rury Private Limit€d

Casa Crande Smart Valuc Homes Privatc Limitcd

Casa Grande Milestonc Privatc Limited

Casa Grande Zest Private Limited

Casa Grande Garden City Builders Private Limited

Casacrdnde vistaaz Privatc Limited

Casa Grande Coimbatorc LLP

Casa Grande Entcrprises LLP

Casa Grande Shelter LLP

Casa Grande Vallam LLP

Grace Gated Community LLP

Danub Homcs Private Limited

Dawning Developers LLP

Casa Grandc Realton LLP

Sky Magna LLP (Till FY 2020-21)

Casagrand Aesthetic Private Limited

Casagand Regale Private Limitcd

Casagrand Dream Home Privatc Limitcd/ Casagrand Bizpark Privatc Limited (wef 10.01.2022)

Casa$and Spaceintell Private Limited

Upstay Buildcr Privat e Limited (fiom 22ll0l202l)
Casagrand Zingo Private Limited (fiom 28110/2021)

Casagrand Exotia Private Limitcd (from l0lll/2021)
Casagrand Hyderwise Privatc Limited (from 3lll2l202l)
Casagrand Everta Private Limited (fiom l0llll202l)
Casagrand Vivacity Private Limited (from 3/l U2021)

Casagrand Vivaace Private Limited (from 0711212021)

Casagrand Fresh Private Limited (from l4l04D02l)
SHV LPC India Private Limited / Casagand Magnum Privatc Limited (wef 22-02-2022\

Casagrand Anchor Private Limited (ftom 26110/2021)

Casagrand StageT Priv ate Limiled (fr oa 29 I 0412022)

Casagrand Pcrch Builder Privatc Limitcd (fronr 0610512022)

Casagrand Beacon Private Limited (from 25/06n022)

Casagrand Lotus Private Limited (from l6106/2022)

Casagrand Blue Horizon Privat€ Limited (from06/0712022)

Exotia Buildcr Privatc Li'::ited (tuom 0'l 107 D022)

Flock Builder Privatc Limited (fiom 07 1072022)

Casagrand Finedhomes Private Limited (from 1910712022)

Casagrand Alphinc Privatc Limited (from 22l0'l12022)

Casagrand Millenia Private Limited (from 2010312023)

Casagrand Astute Private Limited (from 2210'112022\

Gautarn Agarwaal

Siva Sankar Reddy Nagclla

Arun Mn

Dorothv Thomas

Holding company

Fellow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary

Fcllow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary

Fellow subsidisry

Fellow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary

Fcllow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary

Fcllow subsidiary

Fcllow subsidiary

Fcllow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary

Fcllow subsidiary

Fcllow subsidiary

Fcllow subsidiary

Fcllow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary

Key managcment personnel

Key managcment personnel

Key managemcnt personncl of parent

entitv

Key management personnel ofparent
entity



Casa Grande Axiom Privste Limited
Notes to Fin{ncial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2023

(All amounts are in Millions, unless otherwise s

Note : Related party relationships arc as identified by the managcmcnt

ii. Trrnssctions with thc rclstcd psrties

Psrticulsrs
As at

3l March 2023

As st
3l Msrch 2022

Nature ofRelationshipName of the Relatod Party

Blitzkrieg Technologi Private Limited

Propel Holdings LLP

Iris Development LLP

Blue Sea Homes Search LLP

UKR Agency Private Limited (Till FY 2020-21)

Gallante Promoter LLP

Nobilitas Home Search LLP

Sea View Homes Search LLP

Solace Gated Community LLP

Venerate Homes Search LLP

Zest Homes Search LLP

Casagrand Supreme Home LLP

AAK Rcalty Service LLP

Arun Hope Foundation

Casagrand Millenia P vate Limited

Casagrand Brightkids Private Limited

Syona Cosmctics Private Limited

Chengalpanu Warchousing Pa*s Private Limited

Thinksai soflwarc Private Limited (Till FY 2021-22)

Arun Family Trusteeship LLP

Casagrand Arun MN Academy Foundation

Casa lnterior Studio Private Limited (From 0110212022)

Casa Grande Propcarc Private Limited (From 01102/2022)

Casagrand Starpark Private Limited

Casagrand Luxor Private Limited

Chengalpattu Logistics Parks Private Limited

Casa Grandc Panache Private Limited (Till Fy 2021-22)

Entities in which key management
personnel

exercise significant influence

r) Intercst incoma

Casa Grande Garden City Builden Private Limited

Casa Grande Grace Private Limiled

Casa Grandc Sheltcr LLP

Casa Grande Smart Value Homes Private Limited

Casagrand Premier Builder Private Limited (Formerly known as

Casagrand Buildcr Privatc Limitcd)

Casagrand Vistaaz Private Limited

Grace Gated Community LLP

Casa Grande Zest Private Limited

Casagrand Vivaace Private Limited

Danub Homes Private Limitcd

Dawning Devclopers LLP

Casagrand Millenia Private Limitcd

Casa Grande Zest Private Limitcd

b) Construction erpenses

Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limit€d

c) Advertisementerpenses

Casa Grandc Enterprises LLP

d) Sccurity charges

Casa Grandc Propcare Private Limited

0.35

0.65

0.26

0. t4

34.13

4.79

4.27

0.15

0.21

134.59

2.35 2.10

34.89
0.32
0.31

0.01

0.77
1.78

t.l0
0.05

0.0 r

0.43

t.44
0.40



Csss Grsndc Ariom Privstc Limited
Notes to Financial Strtcments for the year ended Jl March 2023

(AII amounts are in Millions, unless otheruise slated)

Particulars

As at

3l March 2022

0 Reimbursementofaxpenscs

Casa Grande Homcs Private Limited

Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited

Casagrand Premicr Builder Private Limited (Formerly known as

Casagrand Builder Privatc Limitcd)

g) Lorn ReceiYed

Dawning Developcrs LLP
Casa Crande Homes Privatc Limited
Danub Homes Private Limited
Casa Crande Realtors LLP
AAK Realty Services LLP
Casagrand Magick Ru! Privare Limited
Casa Gmnde Shelter LLP

Casa Grande Garden City Builders Private Limited
Gazy Mag Private Limited
Casagrand Visraaz Private Limited
Casa Crande Civil Enginccring Private Limited
Casa Grande Grace Private [-imited

Casagrand Premier Builder Privatc Limitcd (Formerly knowr as

Casagrand Builder Private Limited)

Casagand Millenia Private Limited

Grace Gated Community LLP

Caegrand ViYaace Private Limited

Casa Grande Zes Private Limited

Casa Crande Milestone Private Limited

h) Loan Giveo
Casa Grande Homes Private Limited
Danub Homes Private Limited

Casa Grandc Realtors LLP

AAK Realty Services LLP

Casa Grande Milestone Private Limited

Casagrand Magick Rury Private Limited

Gazy Mag Pdvate Limited

Casagand Vistaaz Private Limited

Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited

Casagrand Prcmier Builder Private Limited (Formerly known as

Casagrard Builder Private Limited)

Casagrand Millenia P vatc Limitcd

Casa Grande Vallam LLP

Casa Grande Smafl Value Homes P vate Limited

0.25
0.3 8

0.08

0.s 8

0.13

0.06
0.83

0.24
24.21

1.04

0.05

8.69
0.01

0.02
0.04

0.50

16.86

169.01

0.92

3.28

2.97

8. l4

2.07

0.60

0.01

4.37
7.29

0.27
6.63
2.30
0.66
0.03
4.35
t.26
:.34
0.20

t.41
10.81

322.21
0.09

2.99

0.09

0.05

7 .49

6.37
0.7 5

0.25
1.05

5.19
0.29

0.06
1.99

As et

3l March 2023

c) Intcrest expcnscs

Casa Grande Homcs Private Limited

Casagrand Magick Rury Private Limired

Casa Grande Vallam LLP

Danub Homes hivate Limited

AAk Realty Services LLP

Casa Gmrde Civil Engincering Private Limited

Casa Grande Milestone Private Limited

Casa Grande Realtors LLP

Casa Grande Smart Value Homes Private Limited

Casagrand Millenia Privatc Limited

Casagrand Horizons Private Limited

Cazy Mag Private Limitcd

2l 8.88

985.86
0.05
1.22
4.76



Casa Crande Axiom Privrte Limited
Notes to Finrncisl Strtements for thc yesr cnded 3l Msrch 2023

(All amounts are in Millions, unless otherwise stated)
iii. Balances outstanding at the end ofthe year

Prrticuhrs
As ot

3l Msrch 202J
As st

3l March 2022

a) Short term borrowings

Casa Crande Civil Engineering Private Limited

Dawning Developers LLP

Casa Grande vallam LLP

Casa Grande Realtors LLP

Casa Grande Milcstone Private Limited

Casagrand Magick Rufy Private Limited

Gaz] Mag Private Limited

Casagrand Premicr Buildcr Private Limited (Formerly known as

Casa$and Buildcr Privatc Limited)

Casagrand Millcnia Private Limited

Danub Homes Private Limited

AAK Realty Servicos LLP

Casa Grande Homcs Privat€ Limited

b) Trsdc payables

Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limitcd

Casa Grande Entcrprises LLP

Casa Grande Propcarc Private Limited

c) Inlerest Prysblc
Casagrand Premicr Builder Private Limited (Formerly kno\r'n as

Casagrand Builder Private Limited)
Casa Grande Homes Private l,imited

Casagrand Magick Rury Private Limited

Casa Grande Vallam LLP

Danub Homes Private Limited

AAK Realty Services LLP

Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited

Casa Crande Milestone Private Limited

Casa Grande Realtors LLP

Casa Crandc Smart Value Homcs Private Limited

Casagrand Horizons Private Limited

Gaz] Mag P vate Limited

d) Share Capitd
Casagrand Premier Builder Priyate Limited (Formerly known as

Casagrand Builder Private Limited)

c) Short-term loans lnd ldvances

Casagrand Vistaaz Private Limited

Grace Oated Community LLP

Casa Grande Shelter LLP

Casa Grande Garden City Builders Private Limited

Casa Grande Grace Private Limited

Danub Homes Privatc Limitcd

Casa Grande Vallam LLP

Casa Grande Smart value Homes Private Limited

Casagrand Premier Builder Private Limited (Formerly known as

Casagrand Buildcr Private Limited)

14.81

0.48

9.t4
0.03

0.02
0.02

0.02
4.34

0.34

0.01

1.98

0.02
0.01

0.10

0.03
0.10
0.04

0.3 0

1.00

0.11

0.34

4.'10

0.26

204.46

0.04
6.47
0.03

6.68

151 .59

1.69

t.02

9.14

0.5 8

0.13

0.06
0.83

0.10

2.57
1.64

3.79
5.72

4.69

612.66

r.83



Casa Grande Axiom Private Limited
Noter to Financirl Statements for the yerr ended 3l March 2023

(A II amounts are in Millions, unless otherwise staled)

Particulars

As at
3l Mirch 2023

As 8t

3l March 2022

0 lnterest rcccivrble

Casa Grande Gaden City Builders Private Limited

Casa Grande Grace Private Limited

Casa Gralde Shelter LLP

Casa Grande smart valuo Homcs Private Limiled

Casagrand Prcmier Buildcr Private Limited (Formerly known as

Casagrand Builder Private Limited)

Casagrand Vivaacc Private Limited

Danub Homes Private Limited

Dawning Developcrs LLP

Grace Gated Community LLP

Casagrand Millenia Private Limited

Casacrande Vistaaz Private Limited

Particulars

0.09
0.24
0.09

1.23

2.25
0.26
o.t4

39.16
0.17
0.82
0.30
0.08

0.05
0.07

4.27

0.21

0. t5

37. Commitments and cotrtitrgencies

(a) Commitments

Estimated amounts ofcontracts rcmaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for:

(i) Capital expenditure commitments: (3 I March 2023 - Nil ; 3l March 2022 - Nil)

As at
3l March 2022

Income tax

Other matters* 2.55

2.55

Note - *lt is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timing ofcash outflows, ifany, in respect ofabove matters pending
resolution of the respective proceedings.

(b) Contingent liability

(i) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts:

As at
3l March 2023



Casa Grande Axiom Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2023

(A ll amounts are in Millions, unless olherwise stated)

38. Segm€nt reporting

The Group is into the business ofreal estate development hence segment reporting as per Ind AS 108 is not applicable

39. Ratio analysis and its elements

Ratio Numerator Denominator
As at 3l

March 2023

As at 31

March 2022
2O23 vs 2O22 2023 vs 2022

Current ratio

Debt Service

Coverage ratio

Return on Equity
ratio

lnventory Tumover
ratio

Trade Receivable

Tumover Ratio

Trade Payable

Tumover Ratio

Net Capital
Turnover Ratio

Net Profit ratio

Retum on Capital
Employed

Return on

lnvestment

Cunent Assets

Toral Debt

Eamings for debt
service = Net profit
after taxes + Finance

Cost + Non-cash

operating expenses

Net Profits after taxes -
Preference Dividend

Net credit sales = Gross

credit sales - sales

retum

Net credit purchases =
Gross credit purchases -

purchase retum

Net sales = Total sales -

sales retum

Net Profit

Earnings before interest

and taxes

Interest (Finance

Income)

Current Liabilities

Shareholder's Equity

Debt service = Interest

& Lease Payments +
Principal Repayments

Average Shareholder's

Equity

Average Invenlory

Average Trade

Receivable

Average Trade

Payables

Working capital :
Currenl assets - Current

liabilities

Net sales = Total sales -

sales retum

Capital Employed =
Tangible Nel Worth +

Total Debt + Deferred

Tax Liability

Investment

2.78

0.7 4

10.5 7

t.37

1.98

3t.43

1.3

3.41

0.13

0.6

NA

L05

2.96

0.4

2.31

0.82

21.48

0.45

23.04

0.05

NA

164.'.l 60/o

-75.00%

2542.50o/o

-40.690/o

t41.46%

46.32o/o

-85.20o/o

160.00%

5'7.89%

NA

(i)

(i I)

(iiD

(iv)

( )

( )

( i)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

Variance (7o) Reason for
change

Debt- Equity Ratio

Cost ofgoods sold

0.3 8

188.89%



Casa Grande Axiom Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the y€ar ended 3l March 2023

(A ll amounts are in Millions, unless olherwise stated)

Explanation for Varisnce in ratios by more than 259lo

t. March 2023 vs March 2022

i) Increase in Curent ratio is due to decrease in other currenl liabilities

ii) Decrease in Debt- Equity Ratio is due to higher profit during the year on closing balance ofequity.

iii) Increase in Debt Service Coverage ratio is due to higher profit during the year

iv) Decrease in Retum on Equity ratio is due to higher profit during the year on closing balance ofequity.

v) Increase in Inventory Turnover ratio is due to increase in purchases during the year

vi) lncrease in Trade Receivable Tumover Ratio is due to increase in sales during the year (because ofperformance obligation)

vii) Increase in Trade Payable Turnover Ratio is due to increase in purchases during the year

viii) Decrease in Net Capital Turnover Ratio is due to increase in working capital during the year

ix) Increase in Net Profit ratio is due to increase in profit

x) Increase in Return on Capital Employed is due to increase in Eamings before interest and taxes

40. Other statutory information

(i) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against The Group for holding any

Benami property.

(ii) The Company do not have any ransactions \.vith companies struck off.

(iii) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period,

(iv) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Curency during the financial year.

(v) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies) , including foreign entities
(lntermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalfofThe Group
(Uhimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalfofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries

(vi) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies) , including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the

understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that The Group shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalfofthe Funding

Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalfofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries,

(vii) The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounls that has been sunendered or disclosed as

income during the year in the tax assessments under the lncome Tax Act, 196l (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions
ofthe Income Tax Act, 1961

41. Expenditure in foreign currency

The company has not made any expenditure in foreign cunency.



Casa Grande Axiom Private Limit€d

Notes lo Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

ll qmounts qre in Millions, unless otherwise stat

42. Code on Social Securitv

The Code on Social Security, 2020 ('Code') relating to employee benefits during emplo),rnent and post-employment benefits received
Presidential assenl in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazene of lndia. However, the date on which the Code will
come into effect has not been notified and the final rules/interpretation have not yet been issued. The Company will assess the impact ofthe
Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective.

As per our report of eYen date
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